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Directors’ Report

intreduotion

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of Places for London Limited [formerdy TTL Properties Limited}
("the Company”] and its subsidiaries ("Places” or “the Group”) together with the audited financial staternents for the year
ended 31 March 2023, The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Transport Trading Limited ("TTL") and is part of the
group headed by Transport for London ["TEL"), the "TiL Group”.

The Group has prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards in
confarmity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Prinv inal activity

The primary activity of the Company is property investment and development. The Company dors not anticipate any
changes to its principal activities in the foresesable future.

Mivetons

The directors who served during the year were:

H. Carter Resigned |8 May 2022

G. Craig

P. Doig Appointed |5 December 2022

L. Hampson

G. Powell Appointed |18 May 2022, Resigned |5 September 2022
A Williams Appointed 20 December 2022

None of the directors had any beneficial interest in the shares of Places or its subsidiaries.
The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ liability Insurance.
fvents after the repoiting date

On 20 June 2023, the directors agreed and passed a special resolution to change the name of the company to Places for

London Limited ("Places”).
Fmiployee involvermnent and @ omimunication

Places recognises the role of the workfarce in enabling the business to achieve its objectives. This is reflected in the

Board's commitment to equal opportunities and effective employee communications,

Consultation on issues affecting the workforce also takes place at regular intervals with representatives from the Group

and trade unions.

A strong emphasis is placed on the provision of news through a variety of media, including intranets (both a TFL Group-
wide intranet and a Places intranet}, poster campaigns. face-to-face briefings. and team meetings. Staff have
opportunities to voice their opinions and ask questions through intranet sites and surveys. Face-to-face briefings and
team meetings are actively encouraged and are held in all business units across the Group.

Vepsality and inclusicn

Places values the diversity which exists in our city and aspires o this being reflected in our workforce. This is reflected
not enly in the recruitment and selection processes, but alse throughout the employment cycle of every member of
staff Places is committed to providing equal apportunities to all employees. irrespective of their gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, creed, colour, race, ethnic origin, or disability. The commitment extends to recruitment and
selection. training, career devetopment, flexible working arrangements and promotion and performance appraisal, Places
is committed to cormply with its legal responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 to make reasonable adjustmenis to a
person’s working conditions wherever possible. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is
made to ensure that their employment continues and to provide specialised training where this is appropriate.
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Directors’ Report

Hoalth, sofety and enviionment

Places is committed to continuous improvement in health, safety. security and environmental {"HSSE") performance. In
addition to HSSE management as part of normal business activity, HSSE objectives are identilied and regularly reviewed
to form short- and longer- term plans for improving improvements embracing customers, employees and contractars.

Streamlined Energy and Carhnn Reporting {SECR) helps busiivesses across the UK in scape of the 2018 Regulations to

cemply with their legal obbgations in respact of energy and carbon usage reporting.

The Tt Annual Report and Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 includes the required disclosures

as per these regulations for the TtL Group.

On an annual basis. the safety, health, and enwvironmental policy and performance reports, containing details of Tik's

action plans in relation to furthennp the precn agenda are published on the T1L website,

Places is responsible for managing landiord safety requirements across its portfotio, and alsg ensures appropriate safety

processes and proceduras and in place in its partner arganisations

Leomyl o s ern

The Places Group is expected o continue as a going concern fram the date of signing these financial statements for the
period ending 31 March 2025 [which cavers the remamder of Z023/24 and 2024/25 financial years). which is the going
concern assessment period. The Group is well capitatised. with £1,850m of share copital in issue. and as at 31 March
2023 has net current assets of £88 5m net assets of £1,799m, as well as a revolving credit facility of £200m. which is
wndrawn at the year end, It has no external debt as at the end of the financial year, Its latest Forecasts, including applied
sensitivities and stress testing, indicate an expectation that Places will be able to meet all of it expecied cashflow

commitments aver the next one year during the going concernn assessmant penaod.

Fodith a1 fonations

No political donations were made during the year {2021/22 £nil).

[Hviderds
No dividends have been dectared for the year 12021/22 Enil).
Coapaar ate pOveinancs

Places for { ondon Limited {formerdy TT1. Properties Limited} is a wholly owned subsidiary of Transport for London {TfL},
which appoints all the directors of the Company. The Board of Places for London Limited (Formerdy TTL Properties
Lirnited}, through standing orders and its management structure, implements the corporate 2ims and controls laid down
by L. A {and and Property Committee has been established as a subcommittee of the TFL Board, to oversea the
activities of Places lor London Limited {formerly TTI Properties Limited). Particulars in respact of corporate governance

can be found in Tfl 's Annual Governance Statement.

The direcrors wiho held oifice at the date Ll approval of this Directors' Repaort confiem that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all
the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himzelf aware of any relevant audit information and 1o
establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that Information.

As at April | 2022 Places became independent of TFL for financing arrangemants pnly and will to make no further claim
on TiL for borowings. In June 2072 it secured a £200m non-reccurse lean facility on the strength its independent

ratance sheet and business plans,
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Directors’ Report {(continued)

Asnditer s and disctowure of information to auditorns
Ernst & Young LLP have been appointed as auditor by resolution of the Board.

So far as the directors are aware. there Is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware;
and the directors each confirm that that they have taken ali of the steps they ocught to have taken as a directar in order
tn make themsclves aware of any relevant audit Intormation and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of

that information.
Addilional disclosures

The Group has chosen, in accordance with Section 414¢{1 1) of the Companies Act Z006. to include certain matters in its
Strategic Report that would otherwise be required to be disclosed in this Directors’ report.

The Suategic report on pages 4 to 8 includes other information related to Future developments ard the principal risks

and risk management of the Group.

Approved by the Board on 05 Seprember 2023 and signed on behall of the Board by

G. Craig
Director

26 September 2023
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Strategic Report

A tistieg and fgtare deslopnmnts
The Places Group ["Places”], comprises Places for London Limited [formerly TTL Properties Limited] and its subsidiaries’.

Places manages @ caommercial praperty portfolio and has a strategic development plan to build 20,000 new homes, three

commaercial offices, and to invest in its rental estate, It has an agreed set of ocbjectives to:

(a) dediver an enlanced linanciat return to TIL in the form of cash return and capital appreciation.
representative of Tf 's funding contrnibution, risk and affordability requirements.

(b) deveiop and embed robust linancial management practices appropriate for a real estate business of
equivalent size, ensuring minimal financial risk back to T¥L:

{cy deliver new housing stack in line with the Tfl, business plan, agreement with HM Government and
support of wider Greater Londan Authority [GLA] objectives; and

{dy  align with TfL's wider abjectives: supporting delivery of operational transport enhancements where there
are synergies between T and TTLP capital programmes, as well as full alignmeant with TEL's
"Colteague”, "Customer” and "Green” objectives.

Dhrectars statement, soction 177 of the Coampanies Age P IAIATSS

As the board of directors of Places for London Limited {formerly TTL Properties Limited) both coliectively and
incividually we fulfilled our duties, as detailed in section | 72 of the Companies Act {2006). to a high standard thraughout

this reporting period.

Fe |

oo fardy Dietwee i oun ataben didory
Key policias and governance for all Places companies are set by the Tt Board.

TfL is @ statutory corporation established by section |54 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 [(GLA Act 1999). it is
a functional body of the GLA and reports to the Mayor of London As such, it is focused on promoting the success of
the business and benefitting alt stakeholders. As a Local Authority, its actvities and engagement are concentrated on
delivering the Mayor's Transpoart Strategy and the needs of its passengers. people. the general public. supply chains and

service provigders.

Key priorities in the Mayor's Transport Strategy are: creating healthy strects and healthy people. creating a good public
transport experience and detivering new homes and jobs. {See the Delivering Mayor’s Stratepy section of TfL's Accounts
for the year ending 31 March 2023). Places supports this strategy through its own growth and investment plans which
includes the delivery of 20,000 homes, and local investment in improving public spaces and transport access where

appropriate.
High standards of business comdngt

TH.'s governance and dewsion-making arfangements ensure we manage the business responsibly and effectively and to
hiph standards of business conduct (see TfL's Governance Framework in TfL's Accounts for the year end 31 March
2023). This includes operating within the requirements of relevant legislation lincluding Local Authority lepislation}, as
well as understanding the responsibilities to spend public funds efficiently and manage risks effectively. TfL conducts, at
least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the systern of internal control. which
is reported to the TfL Audit and Assurance Committee. There is also an annual Board Effecliveness Review.

The opinion lor the year ending 31 March 2023 concluded that TfL's governance framework was satisfactory for TflL's
needs and operated in an effective manner. The opinion highlighted the propress to address previously disclosed
weaknesses in several audits of governance and financial contrals relating to procurement and contract management.
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Strategic Report (continued)

TfL has established a committee structure with delegated scrutiny of key arcas of responsibility. A new Land and
Property Committee was approved to oversee the activities of Places, The committee is made up of members of the TfL
Board and representation from the Mayors office. and met for the first time in June 2022, The TfL Board has the right
range and depth of knowledge, skills and experignces 1o run the business effectively. Board membership, in tine with
best practice, has been refreshed so it remains relevant and up to date lthe list of members is set outin TFL's Accounts
for the year end 31 March 2023}, Al the date of this report just over 47 per cent of TFL. Board members are women. The
Lenefits ul diversity are recognised with continuous iimprovement across the Board and executive teams.

Places’ directors, management and staff act under delegated authorities and Standing Orders established by TiL for day-
to-day activities and decislons within the TfL governance framewcerk,

TfL has a series of policies and guidance setting out expected standards of behaviour and conduct. These policies
include the TfL Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud and corruption policy, Slavery and Hurman Trafficking Statement and the
Whistleblowing palicy. Management and staff of Places comply with all of these requirements.

Prely canseguencey of decisions in the long term

TfL develops its strategy in consultation with its stakeholders, to improve the services it provides to its passengers,
suppliers, customers and communities, and our people. Our Vision and Values — a bold, 1ong-term vision for the
next era for TfL — that sets out our arnbitions far a sustainable, green futwre and a more inclusive, dynamic,
democratic place to work — all for the pood of London. TfL has developed a set of Five strategies that chart its next

steps towards becoming London’s strong, green heartbeat, These stratepies are:
1 Qur colteagues - Be a great place 1o work for everyone to thrive
il Cur customers - Give people more reasons to choase sustainable travel
Gl Qur finances - Grow our income and control our costs
{ivi Our green future - Actively tackle the climate and ecological emergency
] Safety and security - Get everyone home safe and healthy, every day

Places supports this through its own strategic plans and policies. These include a long term investment strategy and a
business plan which has been prepared based on prioritisation of capital projects; assessment of the sources of capital;
review of operating costs; review of rental and other operating incarme recognising expected changes post pandemic,
growth from investment in the existing estate. improving voids performance and growth from delivery of Build to Rent

and commercial schemes.

in Docernber 2022. the TfL Board approved the 2023 TfL Business Plan which incorporated Places plan and was the first
business plan since the pandemic. The first full year of the business plan is used as the basis for an annual budget, which

allocates resources to projects for the year ahead.

interests of TH Group employees

We strive to create a workpiace that is safe, secure and contributes %o an engaged workforce.

Ouwr Vision and Vatues is a cuimination of what our people said our future should logk like and how they said we should
work together to achieve it, This includes cur organisational values — caring, open and adaptable.

Qur calleague strategy sets out how we will dellver our ambition to be a great place to work for everyone to thrive. We
have introduced a new approach to managing talent and career progression, supporting everyone to have regular
conversations about their role and their development.

Whilst the majority of TfL colleagues are in roles which require them to be at an operational or project location, for our
office-based colieagues we are operating a hybrid-working approach. which offers Flexibility and is valued by them.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Those who are hybrid working have been expected to be in the office on average two occasions per week, which will
increase to three in the near future, for the purpose of what we call the three Ts: Coltaboration, Culture and Coaching.

The wellbeing of our employees remains a priority and we continue to offer a range of services and resources to support
physicat and mental health.

Ensuring we hear the voice of our employees remains important to us. While our Trade Union relationships — with local,
tunctional and company-level meetings take place across different parts of the organisation - play a significant role in
achieving Lhis, cur staff network groups provide employees the chance to share ideas and support each other in
developing our equality agenda in all areas of employment.

gt ot ot ations an the commaenity and the tsedeopment

Streamiinad Energy and Carbon Reporting helps businesses across the UK in scope of the 2018 Regulations to camply
with their legal obligations in respect of energy and carban usage reporting.

The TfL Annual Report and Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 includes the required disclosures
as per these egulations for the Tfl Group.

In 2017, the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures {TCID) released clinrate- related Financial disclosure
recommendations designed 10 help organisations assess and manage climate -related risks and opportunities. The
disciosure recommendations are structured arcund four thernatic areas which provide a frammework for us 1o understand
and take action on our climate risks and opportunities. These thematic areas represent core elements of how
orpganisations operate: povernance, strategy, risk management. and metrics and targets. Ultimately, widespread adoption
of the recommendations is aimed at enabling financial risks and opportunities, related to climate change, to become a

natyral part of organisations’ risk management and strategic planning processes.

The TfL. Annual Report and Statement of Accounts far the year ending 31 March 2023 have voluntarily included climate
related financial disclosures for the Group, it is not mandatory for the purposes of these financial statements.

On an annual basis, the safety, health, and enviranmental policy and performance reports, ¢ ontaining details of Tf.'s

action plans in relation to furthering the green agenda are published on the THL website.

arince s afidothiers

Feotenng business relationships with supplices, cus

Flaces continues to make improvements that make us more depenelable and easier to wark with by working smarter with

aur supply chain partners and iovolving them earlier in the planning phase to help us improve efficicncy.
We work with partners and suppliers to ensure shared objectives and detivery of outcomes.
r;;.»mm.ﬂ:i?é&;

Places approach to sustainability was pioneered within the TfL Sustainable Development Framework [SDF), which is
based on thiee years of developing, pitoting and collaborating. This has now been implemented acioss our property
develapment portfolic. The SDF will be Foliowed with the creation of the TfL Sustainable Estates Framework {SEF},
which adopts the same overarching approach but tailored to the requirements of standing assets under active

management.

Places has live averarching principles that guide the mission to build a more sustainable London:
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Strategic Report {continued)

] Place — making the best use of our property assets by curating wefl-connected. thriving and smart
neighbourhoods that deliver maximum impact for their communities.

{i1) Planet — respecting the environmeant and combating climate change is a pre-requisite for TTLP and those with
whom we work. Decarbanisation will be a core part of how we do business,

i Partnerships — TTUP will act as a leader, convenor and partner, harnessing the scale and breadth of cur
influcnee. We witl work closcly with vur sharchubders to Jdetiver co-Lenefits for TTL aod Tu Luodon,

(v} People — TTLP will value. respect and listen to local communities. taking a customer-led approach in putting
people first. This will be enabled by a motivated, highly skilled team that reflects the diversity of London.

v Productivity — TTLP will encaurage innovation and the exchange of ideas across its activities and work to
suppart the growth of small businesses on our estate. We will invest in technology and use data to inform our
decisions.

With 97 sustainability indicatars on environmental sustainability, social impact, and ecanomic develapment, the SDF
represents one of the most comprehensive and results-focused frameworks of its kind in the world. This metric-driven
tool is helping Places become London's {eading sustainable developer, resulting in high-impact projects for the public
good.

How we make & difference

] Reducing carbon emissions — Across our development portfolio. we are reducing our operational carbon
emissions by 54 per cent compared to building regulations - well in excess of the 35 per cant reduction
required by the London Plan.

(i) Promoting biodiversity and greening London ~ Two thirds of our residential development projects are planned
to exceed a | 0% Biodiversity Net Gain uplift with a projected average biodiversity net gain of [ 30% across ail
residential projects, helping to support Londen's urban ecosystems. Our projects are designed to intensively
preen the urban environment. We have a projected average Urban Greening Factor of 0.4 across our residential
develepment portfolio with 40% of projects exceeding the policy target of 0.4

(iii} Home Quality Mark — Our robust sustatnability approach means we have achieved an average Home Quality
Mark {HQMI rating of 4.4 Stars across our portfolio, with 44 per cent of our schemes at 4.5 Star - the highest
level of certification in the UK to date.

() Creating jobs, providing apprenticeships and diversity in employment — As part of our developrment
programme, we have set up a series of construction skills training academies. These have seen 3.000
apprentices trained for skilled construction work, with 78 per cent of trainees coming from unemployment.
Over 1.000 of our Former trainees are now in long-term employment in construction. 65% of trainees have
teen from ethnic minority communities, and 20% were young peopla not in education, employment or training.

The 504 & published at https-Henntert $ goy sk ite dbhoandbend ndf
Podormanos Summary

Places’ gross income generated totalled £75.4m (2021/22 £69.1m). income has returned to a more normal level. with
new lease activity ticking up. However, our tenants are now experiencing the impact of a combination of inflationary
pressures and higher interest rates and we expect this to cause further volatility in property markets over the caming

year.

Costs and spend were maintained at an appropriate level during the periad.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Places saw net revaluation [osses on its investment property portfolio for the year of £112.9m, (2021/77 net revaluation
gainm of £89.0m)

Group loss after tax for the vear was £130.5m (2021/22 a profit of £115.3m).
Principal tlsis aned risk managsnent

Places’ Risk Management plan provides a framework for the organisation Lo wisure that business risks are appropriatety
identified, reviewed regularly and that progress on the management of key business risk is tracked.

The principal risks to which Places is exposed include landiord safety compliance, managing the condition of our stock.
maintaining efficiency of our cost base and financial/funding dsk. For each risk, an owner has been identified who is

respansible for implementing the mitipation strategy that has been identified.

As part of its overail corporate povernance brief within the THL Group, the TEL Audit and Assurance Cammittee has
specific responsibility for assuring the 1fL Board that effective (isk management arrangement are in place. The risk
management process is subject to annual review by the TIL Group's Rirector of Internal Audit.

Punciing tish

As at 31 March 2023 the capital structure of the Group consists enticety of shareholder's equity. As April 1 2822 Places
became financially independent of the Tfl. Group and as such is no longer reliant on TEL for business financing. The
Places business plan sets out investrnent plans for the next [ years and has been stress tested for rarige of risk issues
The Places business plan indicated a need for external finance so in June 2022 a £200m funding facility was securad
which is backed solely based on assets and income and expected performance of Places. without recourse to TiL. As at
31 March 2023, the Places have no external borrowings and no externally imposed capital requirerments

Associates and joint ventures of the Places are funded through partner equity cantributions and debt drawn down

directly within the relevant associate or joint venture.

Approved by the Board on 05 September 2023 and signed on behalf of the Board by

G. Craig
Director

26 September 2023
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Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

tn Respect of the Directors' Report, the Strategic Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report, the strategic report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law they have
elacted to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financiat Reporting Standards in confarmity
with the requirements of tha Componics Act 20006.

Under company iaw the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

in preparing these financial staterments, the directars are required to:
+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
*  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
+  state whether they have been prepared in eccordance with UK Adapted International Accounting Standards;
and
+  prepare the financial statements on the poing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group or Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group
and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and
Company and enable them to ensure thal the financial staterments comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and
Campany and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Places For London Limited (Formerly TTL Properties Limited) {'the parent
company’} and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise Group Income
Statement, Graup Statement of Comprehensive Income, Graup Statement of Financial Pasition, Group Statement of
Changes in Equity, Group Statement of Cash Flows, Company Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of
Changes in Eguity and Coinpany Statement of Cash Flows, Accounting Policies and the related notes 1 to 30, including
a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international Accounting Standards and as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
March 2023 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted [nternational

Accounting Standards;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted
International Accounting Standards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We canducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial staternents section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethica!
requirements that are relevant to aur audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern for the period to 31 March 2025,

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statementisnot a

guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual

report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are requined Lu delermine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other

information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In cur opinien, based on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

«  theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and directors’ repart have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
toreport to you if, in our opinicn:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our auvdit have
not been received frem branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page g, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financiat statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to qoing concern and using the gaing
toheern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our epinion.

Reasonakble assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise frem fraud or error and

are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemants.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiations, We design procedures in line

with our respansibilities, outlined above, to detect iwregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intenticnal misrepresentations, ar through collusion. The extent to

which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity

and management.

We cbtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and
determined that the most significant are those that relate to the reporting framework (IFRS and Companies Act
2006) and the relevant tax compliance regulations in the UK.

We understood how the Group is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries from this those charged
with governance, those responsible legal and compliance procedures and internal auvdit. We understood the
oversight of those charged with governance, the culture of hanesty and ethical behaviour and whether a strong
emphasis is placed on fraud prevention, which may reduce oppertunities for fraud to take place, and fraud
deterrence, which could persuvade individuals not to commit fraud because of the likelihood of detection and
punishment, We corroborated our enquiries through our review of board minutes, papers provided to the TfL
Audit and Assurance Committee and correspondence received from requlatory bodies.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Company's financial statements to material misstatement, including how
fraud might occur by meeting with management within various parts of the business to understand where they
considered there was susceptibility to fraud. Where this risk was considered higher, we performed audit
procedures to address each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing manval journals and were
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from fraud or error.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and
reguiations. Qur procedures involved a review of board minutes to identify and noncompliance with laws and
regulations, a review of the reporting to the TfL Audit and Assurance Committee on compliance with regulations,
enquiries of the Head of Counter-Fraud and Caorruption and enquiries of management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Fipancial
Reporting Council's website at https://www.frcorg.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

auditar’s report.

Places for London Limited (formerly TTL Properties Limited) Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

12



Independent Auditor’s Report

Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the company's members, as a bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not arcept ar assume responsihility to anvone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, ar for the opinions we have formed.

Caroline Mulley (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Newcastle Upon Tyne

27 September 2023
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Group Income Statement

Year ended 3{ March 2023 2022
Note £m £m
Revenue 1 75.1 691
Net operating cosls 83.4)  (54.1}
Operatiag rofit 2 22.0 5.0
Other gains and losses 5 (1rz.9 89.0
Poetal dosspeotin from operaticns 90.9) 104.0
Financial income 6 0.3 -
Financial expenses I (1.3 -
Group share of profit after tax of joint ventures 14 8.7 7.9
Group share of losslfprofit after tax of associated undertakings I5 {(41.5} 23.9
N esndpofit before taxation [124.7) 135.8
Income tax s {5.8) 120.5)
oo fprofit for the year atuibutafde Lo owmas of the Company 1130.5) 1153
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March 2023 2022
fm £m
Lass fpretit for the yaar 1130.5) 1153
Other comprehensive income and expenditure _ - -
Total coanprehessve in ome and e aftentityne bor Has ywoqr otibutobie 1o owners <5t
NP (130.5) 1153
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Group Statement of Financial Position

Noncurrent assats

intangible assets

Investment property

Joint venture investrments accounted for using the equity method
Associate investment accounted for using the equity method
trade and cther receivables

Cuiient assety

Assets classified as held for sale
Trade and other recgivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Cunrent Gabsllities
Trade and other payables
Right-of-use lease liabilitics

Provisions

Flon current habilities

Trade and other payables
Right-of-use tease lisbilities
Provisions

Long-term deferred tax Liabilities

it assels

Pty

Cailed up share capital
Equity leans

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

Mote

14
15

17

18

19

20

21

Fi
27

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£m £m

2.6 2.5
1.471.2 |.469.4
79.9 47.3
166.9 197.4
0.5 -
17211 V7167
48.8 51.5
2.6 12
B0.& 9.6
132.0 62.3
{40.9) (31.9)
0.2) -
(2.4) B -
{43.5) {%1.9}
0.3} -
(7.5} -
2.00 -

- (17.4]

{9.8) {17.4)
1,799.8 1,729.7
1,850.0 1.650.0
0.6 -
{50.8) 79.7
O 1799.8 17297

The Accounting Poticies and notes on papes 22 to 83 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 05 September 2023 and signed on Its behalf by:

G. Craig

DRircttar

26 September 2023

Company Registration Number 08961 15}
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

At 31 Maich 2021

Profit for the year

Totat comprehensive income
Issuance of share capilal

Equity loans wiitten off by parent
Repayrnent of equity loans
Release of revaluation to retained earnings
At 3] March 2022

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss
Issuance of share capital

Frurty loans rereived fram parent

Bzlance at 31 March 2023

Places Far Landon Limited [formerly TTL Praperties Limited) Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Share Revaluation Retained

capital Equity loans reserve earnings Total
Lrn £m £m Em Em
1,500.0 5161 .8 (333.5) 1,684.4
o - - - 115.4 115.4
- - - 115.4 [15.4
150.0 . - - |50.0
- {296.0) - 296.0 -
- {220.1 - - {220.1)
N - - (1.8 8 -
1.650.0 - - 79.7 },729.7
o . - - {130.5 {130.5)
- - - {130.5) (130.5)
2000 - - - 200.0
e 06 0.6
[.B50.0 0.6 - (50.8] 1,799.8
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Group Statement of Cash Flows

Year endad 31 March

Cash flows from operating activities

Total {oss)/profit from operations

Adjustments for:

Revaluation loss/lgain) from investment property

Gain on disposal of Investment property

Financial income

Financial expense

Share of net loss/{profit) from associates and joint venture
Cash flow from operating activities before movements In working capital
Decivase In trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Taxation [received)/paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Canh Hows fram investing activities

Net proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Acquisition of investment property

interest received

Investment in equity of joint ventures

investment in equity of associates

Netcash utitised by invasting activities

Cash flows from fisancing sctivities
Drawdown/irepayment] of loans from ultimate parent
Capital grants received

Capftal element of lease and PFi liabilities repaid
Interest paid

MNet canh flow penesated fromfiutitised inl Finanring activities

Nt cash moverneat in the yeai

Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note 2023 2022
Restated®
£m £m
{124.% 1358
3 121.5 (89.0)
3 {8.8) -
a [0.3) -
7 P23 -
32.8 {31.8)
208 5.0
44.7 1991
5.8 29.0
4.4 -
73.7 2431
{23.2} {3.1]
50.5 240.0
68.4 -
(14,2} {6.1)
0.3
239 14.7)
{11.0} -
19.6 {10.8)
0.6 (220.1)
(.7 -
(0.3 -
{1.3) -
. 0.7 {220.1)
70.8 1
9.6 0.5
19 80.4 9.6

*The prios year conperatives have been restated to remeve non-cash transactions with other group entities relating to the
issue of share capital and acquisition of ifvestment properties. As s result the movement in trade and other receivables bas
been increased by £7.3m from £191.8m, which has resulted in an increase in the net cash generated from operations of
£7.3mfrom £232.7m. The acquisition of investment properties has been reduced by £142.7m from £148.8m. reducing
cash outflow from investing activities by £142.7m from £153.5m. The cashilow from issuance of share capital of £150.0m
previously reperted has been excluded and as a result the cash out flow from linancing activities has increased by £150.0m

to £220.Im
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Company Statement of Financial Position

Pon cutent assets

Investment property

Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Fquity loans Lo subsidiaries

Trade and other receivables

(et assets
Assets classified as held for sale
Irade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Cgnpent bodsifitios
Trade and ather payables
Right-of-use lease liabilities

Provisions

RNese vt rant babilities
Trade and other payabies
Right-of-use lease liabilities
Provisions

Deterred tax

fabort et s

gl ves

Share capital
Equity loans
Retained reservas

Total eruity ableibutalde to oot oF Vhe Cogany

The Accourting Policies and notes on papges 22 to 83 form part of these financiat slatements.

Not

1
13
16

8

20

1t

26
Y

3t March 31 March
2023 2022

£Em £m
1.451.0 1, 449.4

t.1 {1

288.2 233 .4

0.5 .
1,740.8 1,683.9
48.8 51.5

4.9 1.3
806 96
1343 62.4
143.8] {21.7)

0.2 -
o -
T T
{0.3) -

(7.5} -

{2.4) -
Sy
N fic.2l 7.4
1.8i8.9 1.697.2
1,850.0 1.650.0
0.6 -

{31.7) 47.2
1.818.9 1.697.2

Places for Lendon Company is cxempt under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from producing an income

statément.

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 05 September 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Director

26 September 2023

Company Repistration Number 08951 151
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

At { Aprit 202

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
issuance of share capital

Equity loans written off by parent

Repayment of equity loans

Ralease of PPE revaluation reserve to retained earnings

Balance at 31 March 2022
L.oss for the year

Total comprehensive expense
Issuance of share capital
Equity loan received from parent

Balance at 3t March 2023

Places for London Limited [formerly TTL Properties Limited! Annual Report and Frmancia! Statements Tor the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

Share Revaluation Retained
Mote capital Equity loans reserve earrings Total
£m £m Lm £m Em
£.500.0 516t .8 {346.2) 1.671.7
e - 956 956
- - 95.% 25.6
16 150.0 - - - 150.0
77 - {296.0) - 296.0 -
- {220.1) - - {220.1}
- - {1.8) .8
t.650.0 - - 47.2 1697.2
™ {738.9} (78.9
- - - {78.9) (78.9)
26 200.0 - - - 700.0
27 - 8.6 - - 0.6
|,850.0 0.6 - (31,7} 1,818.9
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 3! March

Cash Hows trom eperating ativities

(Losskprofit before Lax from continuing operations
Adjustments For

Revaluatian lossflgain} from investment properties
Gain on disposal of investment property

Financial income

Financial expense

Taxation received

Cash llow from operating activities before movements in working capital
Decrease in trade and other receivables

tncrease in trade and other payahies

Increase in povisions
Ploet cash penerated from iutiine byl opeoatiog artivities

Taxation paid

et cash generated tom operatag a0 tivitiee

Loagd v Trorn v sting S tivites

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Acquisition of investment propeities

Increase in loans to subsidiaries

Pt Cash atitined by nvesting wotvities

Coasti flhovs from Birmancing activitos

Drawdown/flrepayment) of laans from parent undertakings
Capital elament of finance jeases

fat canh Hlow generatet fromfatinng o By’ foancing o fivitis o

Plet cands minvemient i the yea

Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the yeas

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

N 2023 2022
ole
Restated™
Em Em
{75.6} 1160
17 120,14 {160.5)
(8.8} -
{14.6} .
1.3 -
" 3.0
12.4 12.5
41,1 224.7
10.2 188
44 -
780 2660
(2.8} v
75.3 2660
68.4 .
18.2) {23.8)
4.8 130
- 14.6) (36.8)
0.6 (220 1}
- 0.3 -
0.3 (220.1)
71.0 9t
9.6 0.5
12 80.6 946

"The prior year compatatives have been restated 1o remove non-cash transactions with other group entities relating to the
issue of share capital and acquisition of Ivestment properties  As a result the movement in trade and other receivables has
been increased by £32.7m from £192.0m. which has resulted in an increase in the net cash generated from cperations of
£32 7m from £233.3m. The acquisition of investment properties has been reduced by E1H 7 3m from £154.1m, reducing
cash outflow fram investing activitics by £142.7m from £153.5m. The cashilow from issuance of share capital of £150.0m
previously reported has been excluded and as a result the Cash aub flowe fonm finanging setivities luss Inceased by £ 150 Um

tw 220, 1m.
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Accounting Policies

ar Reporting entity

Places for | ondon Limited [formerly TTL Properties Limited} {"Places” or the “Company”] I5 a company domiciled in the
United Kingdom. The Cormpany's registration nurmber is 08961 151 and its registered office is 3 Endeavour Square,
London E20 1N

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2023 include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s equity accounted share of the net assets, and net

profit ar loss of its joint ventures and associates.
Ly Statement of accounting pulicirs

This section explains the Company's main accounting policies, which, uniess otherwise stated, have been applied to all

periods presented in these financial statements.
v, Basis of preparation
Starement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared In sterling which is the functional currency of the Group, rounded to the
nearest million {Em} and in accordance with UK-adopted International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis of measurement

The accounts are made up to 31 March and have been prepared under the accruals concept and in accordance with the
historical cost accounting convention. modified by the revatuation of certain categories of non-cureent asset and

financial instruments.

Where items are sufficiently significant by virtue of their size or nature, they are distlosed separately in the financial
statements in arder to aid the reader’s understanding of the Group and Company's financial performance.

di uses of estimates and judpements

The preparation of Financial statements in confarmity with UK- adopted IFRS as issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board {1ASB] requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires management to exercise
|judgement in applying the Group and Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement

or camplexity, or arpas where assumptions or estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed below.
It is not considered likely that any reasonably possible changes in key assumptions in the next {2 months would have a

material impact on the carrying amounts of batance sheet items not atready held on the halance sheet at fair vaiue.

Uses of judgement
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

In determining whether an arrangement contains 2 lease, as required by IFRS | 6 Leases Standard, there is significant
judgement in determining whether the arrangement conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset and in
determining the lease term particularly in respect of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension

options ot renewal options.

For arrangements where the Group is a tessor there is significant judgement involved in respect of whether the

arrangemant is finance or an operating lease.
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Accounting Policies {continued)

Leases as a lessor

From the lessor's perspective in assessing whether a lease is an operating lease or a finance lease, judgement needs to
be cxercised in detarmining whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards of ewnership of the leased asset are
retained by the Group ar are transferred to the lessee. Given that assets leased under a finance lease are derecognised
from the Statement of Financial Position, and assets leased out under operating leases are not, this can have a significam

effect an the reported fimancial pasition of the Group.
{ses of estimates and assumptions
Useful economic life of property, plant and equipment

in determining the useful econamic bife of property, plant and equipment management estimate the length of time that
the assets will be operational. In assessing the appropriateness of useful economic lives, the impact of the Group's
Ciimate Change Adaptation Plan has been considered, it was concluded there was no material impact or impatrment to

the Group's pssats
Post-retirement benefits

The pension costs and defined benefit plan obligations of the Group's defined benefit plans are calculated on the basis
of a range of assumptions, including the discount rate, inflation rate, salary prowth and mortality. Ditferences arising as a
resuit of actual experience differing from the assumptions. or future changes in the assumptions will be seflected in
subsequent periods. A smali change in assumptions can have a significant impact on the valuation of the defined benefit

abligation,
Provisions

Estimation techniques are employed in the calculation of the best estimate of the amount required to settie obligaticns,
including determining how likely it is that expenditure will be required by the Group or Company. This can be very

complex, especially when there is a wide range of possible outcomes.
Expected credit loss allowance

The expected credil loss allowance recognised in respect of financial assets is based on a forward-locking probability-
weighted measure considering reasonable and supportable information on past events, current conditions and the time
value of money. As at 31 March 2023, management were required to make estimates regarding future josses based on
the impact of ongoing economic factors on credit risk, Given the unprecedented nature of a number of the economic
factors. a greater than usual level of judpement was involved in reaching this estimate.

Taxes

Defeired tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses only Lo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
avaitable against which the losses can be utilised. Significant managemeant judgement is required to determing the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the tikely timing and the level of future taxable

pivlits, Logether with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax losses carried forward with a tax value of Enif (2021/22 Lnil). If the Group was able to recognise all
unrecognised deferrad tax assets, profit and equity would have increased by £8.3mi (2021722 Enil),

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to eamn rentals and/or capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value {oper
market valuel, as estimated by external, professionatly qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution of
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Chartered Surveyors [RICS) guidetines. Gains and losses from changes In the fair value of investment property are
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the period in which they arise.

Office bulldings

Owner-accupiad office buildings held within property, plant and equipment are held at their existing use value, as
estimated by external. professionally qualified surveyors In accordance with RICS guidelines. Movements in the value of

the property are taken to the revaluation reserve.
Leases

When the interest rate implicit in the [ease cannot be readily determined, TfL's incrernentat horrowing rate (IBR] at the
lease commencement date is used to calculate the present value of the lease payments. This is the interest rate that the
lessee would have ta pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of 3 similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment, When no observable inputs are
available, the Group estimates the BR, making assumptions to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease and certain
entity-specific estimates. These assumptions include the consideration of a number of components including the risk-
free rate, the lease term, the credit spread and adjustments related to the specific nature of the underlying asset.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exetcise an extension of termination option. The assessment s reviewed if a significant event ar change in

circumstances ocgurs which affects this assessment.
ol New staodands and intespretations adopted for the first time in these financial statoments

Standards and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ["IASB"] are only applicable if in
accordance with internationat Accounting Standards in conformity with the regquirements of the Companies Act 2006.
The Following new amendments have been applied for the first time in these financial statements:

. Property. Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended Use

The amendment prohibits entitles from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds of the sale of iterms produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the praceeds from
selling such items, and the costs of producing those ltems, in profit or loss.

The amendments to IAS | 6 were assessed o have a minimal impact on the Group's financial statements for the
year ending 31 March 2023,

*  Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling 2 Contract

The amendments ta IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets specifies that only directly
related costs need to be included when assessing whethet a contract is onercus or tass-making. The directly related
costs Include both incremental costs [e.g. the costs of direct labour and materials] and an aliocation of costs directly
related to contract activities [g.g. depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract as well as costs of contract
management and supervision). General and admunistrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded, uniess they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments to 1AS 37 were assessed to have a minimal impact on the Group's finanglal statements for the
year ending 31 March 2023,

e Reference to the Conceptual Framework —~ Amendments to IFRS 3
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Accounting Policies {continued)

The amendment adds an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential 'day 2' gains
or losses arising for tiabilities and contingent tiabilities that would be within the scope of 1AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Cantingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, 1if incurred separately. The exception requires
entities to apply the criteria in 145 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine
whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date. At the same time. the amendmeants add a new paragraph

te IFRS 3 to clarify rhat contingent assets do not quatify for recognition at the acquisition date.

The amendments to IFRS 3 were assessed to have a minimal impact on the Group's financial statements for the

year ending 3| March 2023
s Amendments from the 2018-2020 annual improvements cycle consisting of:

Substidiary as a first-time adopter of International Financial Reporting Standards {[FRS t]. The amendment permits a
subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D1 6fal of IFRS | to measure cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS. This amendment is also applied to
an associate or jont venture that elects to apply paragraph D1 6la) of IFRS |,

The amendments to IFRS | did not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements for the year ending 31
March 2023,

The amendments te IFRS 9 were assessed to have a minimal impact on the Group's financial statements for the

year ending 31 March 2023.
. Reporting requirements of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform and

additional disciosures related to interest rate benchmark reform.,

The impact of the IBOR reform has been assessed Lo have no impact on the Group's Accounts For year ending 31
March 2023,

£ New standands and intenretations ot et sdopted

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the foltowing new and revised (FRS
Standards thot have been issued but are not yet effective and, in some cases, are not in conformity with the

requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

*  Ssle or Conlribution of Assets between an lnvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendmerits to IFRS 10
and 1AS 28 [1ASB decided to defer the effective date of the amendments until such time as it has finalised any
amendments that resuit from its research project on the equity method). The amendments clarify that a full gain or

lass is recogpised when a tisnsfer to an associate of joint venture involves a business as defined in [FRS 3.

+  Amendment to IAS & on Definition of Accounting Estimates leffective for annual periods beginning on or after |
January 2023} - The amended standacd clarifies that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an input
or a change i a measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the

correction of prior period errors

s Amendments to 1AS | and [FRS Practice Staterment 2 Making Materiality Judgemenis [effective for annual periods
beginming an or after | January 2023} - The entity is now required to disclose its ‘material’ accounting palicy

information,

*  Amendment to 1AS |2 on Defered Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction [effective
for annual penods beginnirg on or after | January 2023) - The amendmants clarify that where payments that settle
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Accounting Policies (continued)

a liability are deductible for tax purposes, it is a matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law]
whether such deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognised in the financial statements

(and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and inlarest expense).

¢  Amendments to JAS 1 on classiflication of liabilities as current or non-current leffective for annual periods beginning
on or after | January 2024) -~ further guidance is included to specify that a liability should be recorded as non-
current if the entity has the right to defer settlernent Tor at least |2 months after the reporting date.

s  Amendments to |AS | on non-current liabilities with covenants (effective for annual periods beginning on or after !
January 2024} The amendmaents ¢larify that only covenants with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date will affect a liability's classification as current or nan-current,

s Amendments to [FRS 16 on lease labilities in a sale and leaseback transaction leffective For annuat periods
beginning on or after | January 2024). The amendments focus on providing additional guidance as to how a seller-
lessee should measure the right-of-use asset afising from a leaseback with variable lease payments. The
amendments clarify that the seller-lessee must only record a gain or loss relating to the rights transferred to the

buyer-tessor.
These standards are not expected to have 2 material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods.
g faning concern
The financial statements bave been prepared on a going concern basis

The Places Group is expected to continue as a going concarn from the date of signing these financial statements for the
period ending 31 March 2025 {which covers the remainder of 2023/24 and 2024/25 financial years), which is the going
concern assessment period, The Group is well capitalised, with £1.850m of share capital in issue. and as at 31 March
2023 has net current assets of £88.5m net assets of £1,799m, as well as a revolving credit facility of E200m, which is
undrawn at the year end. It has no externat debt as at the end of the financial year. Its latest forecasts, including applied
sensitivities and stress testing, indicate an expectation that Places will be able to meet all of it expected cashflow
commitments over the next one year during the going concern assessment period.

bl Bevenue fecognition
Revanue is measured after the deduction of value added tax (where applicable).
Rentsl Income

Rental income from operating leases of properties and ATMs is recognised on a2 straight-line basis cver the term of the
lease. Rent-free poriods, incentives, or fixed annual increases in the lease payments are spread on a siraight-line basis
over the lease term. Any inflation linked annual increases in rentals are treated as contingent rents and are recognised as
income when they occur. Rental income based on tenant turnover is considered to be variable income and is therefore

recopnised as income in the periad in which it is earned.

For finance leases, where the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset to the customar, a lease receivable is recognised. Finance income is recognised over the term of the
tease, based on a patlern reflecting 2 constant periodic rate of return on the lease receivable, Lease receipts are
allocated between reducing the principat balance and interest.

Car parking income

Car parking income from operating leases of car parks is recognised on 5 straight-line basis over the term of the
contractual arrangement with the car park management company. lncentives, or fixed annual increases in the lease
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payments are spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any inflation linked annual increases are treated as

contingent rents and are recognised as income when they occur,
i Emloyes bernefits
Defined contribution scheme

A tlelined contribution plan is a post omployment benedit plan under which an enbity pays fixed contributions into a
soparate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations far cantributions 1o
deflined contribytion pension plans are recognised as an employee henefit expense in the income Statement in the

pertods dunng which sefvices are rendered by employees,
Befined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans, of which the majority of staff are members, provide benefits based on final pensionable pay.

Ihe assets of schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

On retirerment, mermbers of the schemes are paid their pensions from a fund which is kept separate from the Group. The

Group makes cash contrtbutions to that fund in advance of members’ retirement.

Pension scheme assets are measured using current market bid values. Pension scheme labiliies are measured using a
projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent

term and currency to the tiability.

The difference betwesan the value of the pension scheme assets and pension scheme liabilities is a surplus or a deficit. A
pension scheme surplus is recognised to the extent that itis recoverable and a pension scheme deficit is recogmsed in
full, The movement in the scheme surplus/deficit is split between operating charges. finance items and. in the statemcnt
of total comprehensive income, actuarial gains and losses. Generally, amounts are charged to operating expenditure on
the hasls of the current service cost of the present employecs that are members of the Schemes.

Defined benefit plans — multi-employer exemption

For certan defined benefit schemes it is not possible for the Company or Group to identify its share of the underying
assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasanahie basis. This is because the plan exposes the
participating entities Lo actuarial risks associated with the current and former employees of other entities. with the result
that there Is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation. ptan assets and cost to individuat entities
participating i the plan. For this reason, as permitted by the multi-employer exemption in [AS 19 {revised 201 1]
Empleyee benefits |"LAS 19R"}, these schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes and contributions are

charged to the Income Statement as incurred.
Other employee benefits

Other shott and iong term employee benefits, including holiday pay and long service leave, are measured on an

undiscounted basis and are recognised as an expense over the period in which they accrue.
P eane e LI GUT a% e

At inception of an arrangement. the Group determmes whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease, A specific
asset is the subject of a lease if fullilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified asset. An
arrangement conveys the right 1o use the asset if the arrangement conveys 16 the Group the right to control the use of

the underying asset,

The lease lisbilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis comprising the following lease

poyments:
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. fixed payments lincluding in-substance fixed payments], less any lease incentives receivable

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index ar rate as at the

commencement date

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees
. the exercise price of a purchase aption if the Growe is 1easunably certain to exercise that
option
. payments of penalties for terminating the tease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option, and
. lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options.

The lease payments are discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate the TT! Group would
have ta pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use assetin a simflar
econemis enviturnent with similar terms, security and conditions. The interest rate Implicit in the lease is only used
when that rate is readity determinable. All the Group's former operating leases have been discounted using the Tl
Group's ingcremental borrowing rate. Tfl. Group's incrernential borrowing rate is used for the TTL Group as all TTL
borrowings are passed down fram TTL's parent. TR, which is the body that raises financing from external parties on

behall of its operating subsidianies,

Til's incremental borrowing rate for each tenor consists of Public Works Loan Board [PWLB] as this is the current source

of borrewing.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate takes
effect, then the lease Hability is re-measured using the changed cash flows and changed discount rate. Further, a
corresponding adjustment is alsc made to the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between the repayment of principal and a finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
Income and Expenditure Statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the

remaining balance of the bability for each period.

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of initial measurement of lease liability

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received
. any inlttal direct costs. and

. restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets ara generaly depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the assat's ucofwl life and
the lense tean. I e is reasonably certain that the Group will exercise a purchase option, then the right of-use asset is

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful ife.

Payments associated with short-term leases and with low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in the Income and Expenditure Statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Low-value assets comarise i T equipment and small items of office furniture.

IFRS (6 aliows a practical expedient that permits lessees to make an accounting policy election, by class of underlying
asset. Lo account for each separate lease component of a contract and any associated non-lease components as a single
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lease component. Contracts for bus services contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the
caonsideration in the coniract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices, The
Group's Accounting Policy is to apply this expedient to other equipment as a class of underlying asset. If the total non-
lease components gver the contract duration is less than 5 per cent of the total contract value or 500,000 whichever is

lower, then the non-lease and lease components can be treated as a single lease.
K Leases the Gioup as lessor!

Lease incorme from operaling leases is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the [ease term. Rent free
pesiads, incentives, or fixed annual increases in the lease payments are spread on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Any inflation linked annual increases in rentals are treated as contingent rents and are recognised as income when
they occur. Rental income based on turnover is considered variable and is therefore recognised in the period it s eamed.
The respective leased agsets are included on the Statement of Financial Position within property, plant and equipment

based on their nature, Any lease modifications are treated as new leases from the date of the modification.

Lease income in respect of proporty leases was adversely impacted by the coropavirus pandemic. Bespoke support was
provided to tenants on a case-by-case basis and includes the grant of rent-free periods and other arrangements
reflecting the position of each custemer, The accounting treatment for the tenant support, which results in some

divergence belween net rental income on a reported basis and cash flow basis, is as foltows:

. Rent-free periods are generally considered to constitute a lease modification under iFRS |6, with the lease
incentive deferred over the remaining loase term. The lease incentive balance is assessed for impairment at each
reporting date. If the pandemic continues and if the level of tenant failures is higher than expected, the

impairment of tenant incentives and bad debt expense is also expected to increase

. Lease income from finance leases is recognised over the lease term at an amount that produces a constant
periodic sate of return on the remaining balance of the not investment in the {ease. The nat investment in the
lease is the sum of tease payments receivable during the lease term discounted at the interast rate implicit in the

lease

. On lease commancemest the carrying value of the assel is derecognised. the net investmaent in the lease 1s
recognised as a finance lease receivable and any selling profit or loss is recopnised in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

L Farane bab ine ame

Financing and investment income consists of interest income on funds invested and expected return on pension assets
and interost receivable on leases. Interest income 1s recognised as it accrues in the Income Statement, using the

effective interest rate method,
my fncome tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are 1ecognised in the Income
Staternent except to the axtent that they relate ta a business combination. ar items recagnised directly in cquity or in

other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the vear, using tax rates enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable In respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amaunts of assets and Liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
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Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or foss, and
differences relating to investments in subsidianies and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they
wili not reverse in the foreseeable future. in addition. deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences

arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measusred at the tax rates that are expected to be apptied to temporary differences when they reverse,

based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Defarred tax assets and Labilities are disclosed net to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authority and the Group has the right of set off.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, 1ax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent
that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be avaitable against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax henefit

will ha realised.
mi intangible asacts
Goodwill

Where the cost of a business combination exceeds the fair values attributable to the net assets acquired. the resulting
goodwill is capitalised and tested for impairment at each Statement of Financial Position date. Goodwill is allogated to
income-penerating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

n; Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment consists of land, office buildings and asscts in the course of construction.
Assets in the course of construction are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses,

Office property consists of business properties, used by the Company for Its own purposes, which are not limited in
their future use by operational constraints of requirements and which are not integral to the infrastructure (e.g. offices).

Cwner-occupied office buitdings are valued at existing use value by external, professionally qualified surveyors in
accordance with RICS Guidelines. Existing use value 15 the estimated amount for which a property should exchange on
the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction disregarding potentiat
alternative uses and any other characteristics of the asset that would cause its market value to differ from that needed
to replace the remaining service potentiat at the measurement date. In determining the existing use value, the
capitalisation of net income method and the discounting of future cash flows to their present value has been used. This
is based upon various assumptions including the anticipated future rental income, maintenance costs and the
appropriate discount rate, making reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. 8, geduction
is made ta reflert purchaser's acqulsitivn custs. Propérties are therefore categorised as Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy, as the measurement technigue uses significant unobsarvable inputs to determine the fair value

measurctments.

Vatuations are performed annually. Movements in the fair value of the property are taken to the revaluation reserve, with

the exception of permanent diminutions in value which are recognised in the income Statement.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, borrowing costs on qualifying assets for which the commencement date
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for capitalisation is on or after | April 2009, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condstion fur thair intended use, Where there is a legal obligation to remove the asset and/or restore the site on which it
is located at the end of its useful economic life. the costs of dismantling and remaving the iterms and restoring the site
on which they are located are also inciuded in the cost of that asset. Proceeds generated from an asset prior to lts
intended use are not deducted from the cost of the assel and area instead charged to the Comprebensive Income and

Lxpenditure Statement as genersted.

When yiajur coumponients of an isem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for

as separate items of property, plant and equipment
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and cquipment is recognised In the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group. and its cost can he
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecogniscd. The casts of the day-to-day servicing of

property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset. or other amount substituted for

cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in the income Statement on a straight-line hasis over the estimated useful lives of each part
of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expecied pattern of consumption of

the future aconamic benefits embuodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comeparative penads are as follows:

Office buildings up to 120 years
Assetls under canstruction and freehold tand are not depreciated.

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate. In assessing the appropriateness of useful economic lives. the impact of the Group's Climate Change
Adaptation Plan has been considered, it was concluded there was no material impact or impainment to the Group's

a55ELS.
Gains and {osses on disposal

Gains and losses on dispesal of an tem of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal along with costs of disposal with the canrying amount of the asset and are recognised net within other

gains and tosses in the Comprehbensive income and Expenditure Statemaont.

Tl IS T LT Ty

tnvestment property is property held either to earn rental Income or For capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale

in the ordinary course of business.

Investment properly is measurad initiatly at cost. including transaction costs. Invest ment property acquired under
finance lease arrangements are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability and any initial direct costs incurred
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by the group. Subsequent to Initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value with any changes therein

recognised in the inCome Statermnment in the period In which they arise.

When the use of a property changes such that It is reclassified as property, plant and eqguipment, is fair value at the date
of rectassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting, Investrment propertles held at fair value are not subject

t¢ depreciation.

{nvestment propoerties arc valued sinuglly at fan value by external, professionally quatified surveyors in accordance with
RICS Guidelines. Fair value is the estimated amount for which an asset ar llability should exchange on the valuation date
between a willing buyer and 3 willing seller in an arm’s tenpth transaction, after proper marketing and where the parties
had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. The methodology assumes the valuation Is based on
the highest and best use of the asset. In determining the fair vaiue. the capitalisation of net income method and the
discounting of future cash flows to their present value has been used. This is based upon various assumptions including
the anticipated future rental income, maintenance costs and the appropriate discount rate, making reference to market
evidenca of transaction prices for similar properties. A deduction is made te reflect purchaser’s acquisition costs,
Properties are therefore categorised as Levet 3 in the fair value hierarchy, as the measurement technique uses significant

uncbservable inputs to determine the fair value measurernents.
i lvestment in subsidiaries

The Company’s Investment In subsidiaries is accounted for at cost and is recognised ret of Impairment lasses,
a Pauity toans to subsidinies

The Company has made equity loans to its subsidiary undertakings. These loans are non-interest bearing and are
repayable by the subsidiaties on demand with two years’ notice. The directors consider these loans to be an in-
substance equity cantribution from the Company to its subsidiaries. They are therefore recognised at cost net of a

provision (or impainment.
tHnvestment in associated undertakings

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, but not control, The results and assets and
lisbilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated accounts using the equity method of accounting from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised on
the Statement of Financial Position at cost and is thereafter adjusted to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss

and other comprehensive inceme of the associate.
stnvestment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangemnent wherein the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractuatly agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated accounts using the
equity method of accounting from the date on which the investee hecomas a joing vemture. Unde Lhe eyulty method,
the investment is initially recognised on the Statement of Financial Position at cost and is thereafter adjusted to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.

4 Aszels classified as Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carnrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately
before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Depreciation is not

charged on Assets Held for Sale.
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W tmpaitient
Non-financial assets

Iimpairment occurs when an asset would otherwize be recarded in the financial staterments at an amount more than is

recoverable fraom its use or sale,

At each reporting date. the Gronp reviews tha carrying armounl of those assels that sie subject to smortisation to
determing whether there is an indication that any of those assets has suffered an impairment toss. H any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.

impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement.

Where an impainment lass is reversed subseguently, the reversal is credited to the impairment line of the
Comprehensive Income and [ xpenditure Statement, up to the amount of the onginal loss, adjusted for depreciatiorn that

would have bean charged if the loss had not been recogrised.
vl Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation 25 a result of 4 past event, il is probable that the
Group will he required to settie that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaount of the oblpation.
Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the consideration required to settle the ablipation at the

Statement of Financial Position date and are discounted to present value where the effect is materal.
wet Finane ial Instramenty

Financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRSY} are classified as:

. financial assets measured at amartised cost

. financial assets measured at fair value through other Comprehensive tncome and Expenditure {FVTOCI)
. financial assets measured at fair value through the Incame Statement [FVTPLY)

. financial liahitities measured at amortised cost

. financial liabitities at fair value through the Incorme Statement [FYTPL)

The Group determines the classification of s finandiat instruments at inivigl recognition. Financial assets may be
reclassified only when the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, at which point all affected
financial assets would be reclassified. Financial liabilities are not reclassified subsequent Lo initial recagnition.

When financial instruments are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. The gxception to this is for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, whare

transaction cosis aie immediately expensed.

The subseqguent measurement of financial instruments depends on whether they are financial assets or financial

liabilities and whether specified criteria are met:

The Nancis assels are measured at amortised cost if

. i1 is the abjective of the Group to hold the asset in order to cotlect contractaal cash flows: and
. the contractual terms give rise to cash flows, which are solely repayments of a principal value and interest
thereon.
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After initidl recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method if the time
value of money Is significant. Gains and losses are secognised in the income Statement when the asset is derecognised

or a loss allowance applied, as well as through the amortisation process.

Financial assets are measuted at FYTOCLIE:

. assets are non-derivative and held within a business modet whose objective is to realise theie valye throngh eithar
the collection of contractual cash flows or selling of the financial agyets: and

. the contractual tarms of the financial asset glve rise to periodic cash flows that are the payment of principal and

interest.

After initial recognition, interest is taken to the {ncome Statement using the effective interest rate method and the
assets are measured at fzir vatue with gains or losses being recognised in Other Comprehensive incame and Expenditure
{and taken to the financial instruments revaluation reservel), except for impairment gains or losses, until the investment is
derecognised, or reclassified at which ume the cumuiative fair value gain or loss previously reported in reserves is
included in the Income Statement, For aquity instruments. unlike debt instruments, there is no transfer of accumulated

amount in Other Comprehensive Income to the Income Statement.

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL if they are:

. derivatives
. not held as amontised cost or at FVTOC
. financial assets that were elected to be designated as measured at FVTPL

After initial recognition, assets are carried In the balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the Income

Staternent.
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost if they are non-derivative with limited exceptions.

After initial recognition, non-derivative financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and investments thal are readily convertible to cash without
significant penalty and with an outstanding maturity. at the date of acquisition, of less than or equal to three months.

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial assets at amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently classified as financial assets at

amortised cost.
Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors are recognised Initially at fair value and subseguently at amortised cost using the effective

interest rate method.
Fair value measurement of financial Instruments

The fair value of quoted investrments is determined by reference to bid prices at the close of business on the balance

sheet date. within Level | of the fair vatue hierarchy as defined within IFRS 7.
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Where there is 0o active market, fair value is datermined using valuaticn techniques. These include using recent arm'’s
tength transactions; refereace to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; and

discounted cash flow analysis and pricing modets.
Impairment of financial assets

At each reparting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a significant financial asset measured at amortised
cost or FYTOU! bas increased significantly since initial recogration and subsequently measures an expected credit loss

allowance for that tinancial instrument,

The expected loss allowance is a measurement bascd on the prabability of detault over the tifetime of the contract for
trade receivabies, lease receivables or contract assets in scope of IFRS 15. For other financial assets. the allowance is
based on the probahility of default oecurring in 12 months providing credit risk is assessed as low.

The expected credit ioss is based on a forward-looking probabitity-weighted measure considering reasonable and
supporiable nforrnation G past pvents, cuirent conditions and the tme vatue of money. Where financial assets are
determined to have shared risk characteristics they are assessed collectively. otherwise, they are reviewed on an

individuat basis,

No loss allowance for expected credit toss is recognised on a financial asset where the counterparty is central
government ar a logal authority and wherse relovant statutory provisions prevent default. Expected credit loss allowances

are recognised in the Income Statement,
Wi Hen ey
Share capital

The balance classified as share capital includes total net proceeads [nominal vaiue) on issue of the Group's share capital,

comprising £ | ordinary shares,
Equity loans

During the year and prior year the Group and Company was in receipt of non-interest besring loan funding from its
parent undertaking. These leans were repayable on demand with two-years’ nolice, As such they were classified as a
form of equity funding by the directors. Curing the year an elememt of these toans wis {ormally forgiven by TTL with the
related credit being recognised directly in resesves, and the remaining balance was repad.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve contains the accumulated gains made arising from increases in the value of oflice property. The

halance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

» Revaiued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; os
. Used in the provision of services and Lhe gains are consumed through depreciaticn; ar
. Disposed of and the gains are transferred to retained earnings.

Retained earnings reserve

All other accumutated net gains and losses and transactions less any amoutits distributed to shareholders not

recognised elsewhere.

Places for Londan Limited (formarly TTL Prapecties Limited] Annual Report aned Favarcial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 34
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I Group revenue
Year endad 31 March

Rental income
Car parking income
Other

2 Group operating results
Year ended 31 March

The operating results are stated after charging:
Employee costs

Fployee seivices

Auditor's remones ation

Audit fees for the year are £55,000 (2021722 £50,000]. There are no fees for non-audit services [2024/22 Enil). The TfL

Audit and Assurance Committee reviews and notes the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the Group's

external auditor to ensure that independence Is maintained.

5 Group other gains and losses

Year ended 3 March

Net {lossl/gain on fair value of investment properties

Net llossligain on fair value of investment properties classified as held for sale

Net gain on dispasal of investment properties

Places for London Limited (tarmerly TTL Properties Limited) Aanual Report and Financal Statements far the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 % of 2022 % of
£m total £m total
58.6 78.0 58.3 84.4
14.6 i¢.5 9.1 13.2
1.9 R 2 1.7 2.5
75.1 100.0 69.1 1001

2023 2022

Note £rm Em

5 i17.4 16.4

2023 2022

Em £m

{121.5) 38.2

0.2 .8

. 3.8
(112.9) 89.0
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4 Directors’ emoluments

Year ended 3! March

MNumber of directors who were remunerated by the Group during the year:

The Croup mude cantribullons 19 3 defined contribution seheme on behalf of the
following number of direciors

Number of directors who were members of a defined benefit schoerne

The following rermuneration was paid te the directors by the Group.

For the year ended 31 March

Salaries, feas and benefits in king

Pension costs

2023

Number

2022
Number

2023

381,949
95,555

2022

477,504

Directors’ emoluments and benefits were barne by Transport for L ondon for four directors {2021/27 three directors),

Totat remuneration paid to directors of group by Transport for London was £504, 102 (2021/22 £770.928) anct by its fellow

subsidiaries was £44 1,366 {2021/22 £nit).

PheoBlghest paid dites tor receiverd the followling commumsration Srem the Grougn
Salaries, fees and benefits in kind

Defined contribution pension costs

AT FD Flarch the hiphest paidd dicoc b Bad acorpes] detinued horefit pennion Sepefite
n ] H

valaed at:

TfL defined benefit scheme

2023 2022

[ £

194,140 -

49,024 -
37,769
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

5 Group employee costs

Year ended 31 March 2023 2022

The average number of persons including directors) employed in the year weres Number Number

Average number of employees (including directors) in the year 185 183

Their sgpregate rormune ation comiised: Note £m £m

Wages and salaries £3.1 1i.8

Social securily costs 1.6 .4

Pension cost 24 2.7 3.2

17.4 16.4

Contracts of employment for employees are held by a fellow group company of Places for London Limited. Al costs in

relation to these employees are included in the numbers above as Places for London is recharged n full.

6 Group financial income

Year ended 31 March 2023 022
Em Em

interast receivable 0.3 -

7/ Group financial expenses

Year ended 3! March 2023 2022
£m Em

Other interest payable 1.3 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

3 laxation

The Company and its subsidiaries are assessabie individually to taxation in accordance with current tax legisiation, All

companies are able to claim graup relief.

niCurpon ot Lt Growp

The Group tax charge for the year, based on the rate of corporation tax of 19 per cent (2021/22 19 per cent) comprised:

Group Group
Year ended 31 March 2023 2022
£fm Em
Current tax
UK corporation tax 21.5 3.0
Pricr penod edjustinent o 1.7 0.1
Total current tax charge for the year 23.2 3.t
Deferred tax
Deferied tax - current, year 7.4 74
Total tax charge for the year 5.8 205
Reconciliation of tax chargeficredit)
Group Group
Year ended 3i March 023 2022
Ern £m
{Losslprofit before tax 124 i358
{Lossl/profit before tax muitiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%
{2021/22 9%l (23.7) 58
Lffects of:
Non taxable and non-deductible items 1i.0 (3.7)
Arncunt charged to current tax tor which no deferred tax was recognised 16.8 (1.7
Prior period adjustment R Y S 0.1
Total tax charge for the year 5.8 205
b Woevcgnised detsred tax aswete Group
1he Group hay a potential net deferred tax asset in respect of the following items:
Group Group
Year ended 31 March 2023 2022
£m Em
Deductible tempoiary differences 8.3 -

The deductible lemparary differences do not expire under current tax legisiotion. Deferred tax assets have not been

recognised in respect of these items because it is not considered probable that there will be sufficient future taxable

profits available against which the benefits can be vtilised.

Places for Londen Limited {formerly TTL Properties Limited) Annual Repon and Finenicsel Statements fof the yeor ended 3| Match 7023

k1]



Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

&  Taxation {continued)

< Plovements in recognised defered tax assets and Habilities during the year - Group

Deferred Lan assets hdve Leen recognised to the extent of the deferred tax liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. Their

mavements duning the years were in respect of the following items:

For the year eraded 31 March 2025
Deferred tax assets
investment property

Praperty, plant and equipment

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Net deferrad tax Hablity

For the year ended 3 Mareh 2022
Deferred tax assets

Investment property
Deferred tax liabilities
Praparty, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Net deferred tax liability

Movement
Batance at in income Batance at
| April statement 31 March
£m Em Em
(2.5 2.5 -
{14.9) 14.9 -
ot |17.4 -
{17.4) t7.4 -
4.9 [4.9) -
4.9 14.9) -
(4.9} 2.4 (2.5
- {14.9} {14.9)
[4.9) [12.5 7.4
- (174} {17.4)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

&  Taxation [continued)
The key meovements in the periad were due to the following:

+  The deferred tax liability arising on investment properties, including those held as available for sale. has

decreased tlue to revaluation movements in the year.

*  The property, plant and equipment deferred tax asset and Uability bave changed in the period due to assets

acquired in the year.
S Llmmegognised defenied tax aasetn Corpany

The Company has a potential net deferred tax asscl in 1espect of the following items:

20123 2022
Em £m
Deductible temporary differences 8.3 -
Deferred tax asset 8.3 -
The deductible temporary differences de not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assots have not been
recognised in respect of these items because iLis nol considered probable that there will be sufficient future taxable
profits available against which the benefits can be utilised.
=0 Movements in cecopnised detereeg tas assets aned Hababitee duaing the yvear Comygany
Deterred tax assets have heen recognised to the extent of the deferred tax liahilitios at the Batance Sheet date. Their
movemants during the years were in respect of the following items:
Maovermnant
Balance at in income Balance at
I April staternent 31 March
Foo the vear voded 21 Maioh 2074 £ Em £m
Deferred tax assets
tnvestment property e s
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment [2.5) 2.5 -
Investment properties [t4.9) 14.9 . -
{47 .t} H3 4
Net deferred tax liability {17.4) 7.4 -
Foa the year endded 31 March 2677
Deferred tax assets
Investment property 4.9 (4.9 T
49 o t#&® -
Deferred tax liabilities
40
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

Property. plant and rquipment (4.9} 2.4 {2.5)
Investment properties o - {149 (149

(4.9] {12.5) {17.4)
Net deferred tax liability - {1 7.4) [17.4)

UK Corporation 1ax s calcuiated at a rate of |9 per cent {2021/2022 19 per centh. An increase in the tax rate to 25 per
cent, with effect from | April 2023, was substantively enacted in May 2021 and confirmed in October 2022. Defesred
tax balances at 31 March 2023 have therefore been calculated at a rate of 25 per cent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

9 Intangible assets

o intangible gesets

Goodwill
{ st Em
AL31 March 2022 R 41
At 3F March 2023 R 21
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

[0 Property, plant and equipment

ol Gronp property, plant and equipment at 31 March 20223 comprised the following elements:

Land and
office  Assets under
bufldings  constryction Total
Note £m Em Em

Cost ar valuation
At | Aprit 2021 237 3.6 7.3
Transfers to investment properties 12 {23.7) {3.6) {27.3)
At 31 March 2022 - - -
Duepreciation
At April 2021 1.2 - .2
Transfers to investment properties 12 (1.2} - 1.2}
At 3} March 2022 - - -

Net book value at 31 March 2022 - - -

During the year. there were no additions to property, plant and eguipment.

B Coampany proparty, plant and cdauipment at 31 March 2022 comprised the fallowing elements:

Land and
office  Assets under
buildings  construction Totat
£m £m Em

Cost or valuation
At | Aprit 2021 2% 7 3.4 273
Transters to other investment properties {23.7) (3.6 (27.3)
At 3§ March 2022 _ - -
Depeacistion
At | April 2021 1.2 - 1.2
Transfers to investment properties {1.2) - (£.2)

At 31 March 2022 - - -

During the year, there were no additions to property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I Right-of-use tease liabilities

This note provides information for leases where the Group and/or Company is a lessee.

oy bease Habdlities morelation go dphtood e annets

Peincaal outstanding
Currant labilities
Non-current tiabilities

Total

B farcaugs fease Habdlithes inorodation 1o npht of ase aduets

Conties gl whedine Conted pivine g, e e

Nat {ater than one year
Later than one year but not later than twa years
L ater than twa years but not later than five years

Laler than five years

Less:
Present value discount

Present value of minimum lease payments

Group
2023

Em

0.2
7.5

Group
2022

Em

7.7

Group
2023
£m

0.2
0.2
0.7
i5.8

Group
2022
Em

16.9

N

7.7
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

[ Right-of-use lease liahilities {continued)

of Aralysis of amounts included in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expanditure $tatement

Group Growup

023 2022

£Em £m

Interest payable on right-of«use lease liabilities 0.3 -

Details of the corresponding right-of-use assel have been disclosed in note 12.
df Analysis of amcusts Tncluded in the Statement of Cash Fows

The total cash outilow for leases it 2022/23 was £0.3m {2021/22 End}

v) The Group's leasing activitios and how these are aceounted for

As atessee, the Group leases buildings. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
ditferent terms and conditions, The lease agreements do not impose any coverants other thar the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing putposes.

The accounting of the above leases is described within Accounting Policles sections [} and {k).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

L Right-of-use lease Labilitics {continued)

frEurare canh flows boowhiboh the Lensoe b pestentially eeposed hat wosJare vat reflacted bthe measurement of togse
Gatpdirien

Variable lease payments:

Most of the Group's leased assets have variable lease paymaents linked to a consumer price index. When there is a
change in cash flows because of the change in consumer price index or change in floating rale. then the lease liability is
re-measured to reflect those ievised lease payments and corresponding adjustrnents are made to the right-of -use asset.

Extension and termination options:

Some of the Group's lease contracts have extension and termination options. These options and related payments are
only included when the Group is reasonably certain that it will exercise these options. At the date of these financial
statements, Lhere are no facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to extend or

terminate the lease.
Leases aot yet commenced to which the Group as a lessee is committed:

As at 31 March 2023 the Group is not party ta any fease arrangements 1o which the Group as a lessen is committed but

for which it has not yot recognised any ripht-of -use assat or hability on the Balance Shect.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

| | Right-of-use lease liabilities {continued]

gl Company tease labHitios in relation to sight- of-use-assots

Principal cutstanding
Current Habitities
MNon-current liabilities

Total

b Company Lease Gabitities in relation o right- of se-asgats

Contractual undiscounted payments dus in:
Mot later than one year

Later than one year but not later than two years
Later than two years but not later than five years

Later than five years

Less:
Present value discount

Present value of minimum lease payments

Company
2023
£m

0.2
7.5

Company
2022

£m

7.7

Company
1023
£m

0.2
0.2
6.7
15.8

Cempany
2022
£

16.9

[9.21

7.7
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

Pl Right-of -use lease ligbilities {continued)

i ANty of groounts i luded o the Company Catpprehansive fra cane gnd FExpenditine Statement

Company Company
023 2022

Em Lm

0.3 -

interest payable an rght-of-use lease liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

12 Investment properties

at Movemats ninvestment poopanties in the Group comprisod;

Group
Note Em

Wk atinn
A | April 2021 [,202.1
Additians 6.2
Transfers from fellow subsidiary undertakings of the Tl Group 141.4
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 1) 26.1
Transfers from assets held for sale 7 5.4
Revaluation 3 88.2
Ar 31 March 2022 1.469.4
Additions 16.3
Transfers from fetlow subsidiary underiakings of the Tfl. Group 138.7
Transfer from assets held for sale 17 5.2
Disposets {36.9)
Revatuation O L]
At 3] March 2023 |,471.2

During the year ended 31 March 2073, the Group entered into a new [ease agreement for asset which are classified as
investment property. Included within the balance above are right-of-use assets with a carrying value of Enil {2021/22:
£nil). details of the right-of-use liability have been disclosed in note 1 ).

The fair value of the Group and Company’s investment properties has been arrived at on the basis of valuations at that
date by CBRE. a real estate advisory business not connected with the Group. In determining the fair value, the
capitalisation of net income method and the discounting of future cash flows to their present value has been used. This
is based upon various assumptions including the anticipated future rental income, maintenance costs and the
appropriate discount rate, making reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. A deduction
1s made 1o reflect purchaser's acquisition costs. Values are therefore calculated under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
in esumating fair value, the highest and best use of the properties is assurned to be their current use. There were no
transfers of properties in or out of level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year [2021/22 nanel.

Properties are valued annually in accordance with the Red Book. RICS Valuation — Global Standards published by the
Royal institution of Chartered Surveyors.

In the year to 31 March 2023, a rorat net revaluation loss of £121.5m (2021/22 pain of £88.2m) on group’s investment
properties and loss of £0.2m (2021/22 gain of £0.8m} on investment properties classified as held for sale, was
recogrised within other gains and losses in the Income Statemient. Details of investmeant properties held for sale are

disclosed in note |7,

Rental income earned in relation to investment properties is disclosed in note |. Operating expenditure for Lthe year in
respect of investment properties totalled £31.4m for the Group (2021722 £39.8m),

Information about the impact of changes in unobservahle inputs (level 3} on the fair value of the Group's investment

portfolio is set out in the table overleaf.
All ather factors being equal:

. a higher equivalent yield or discount rate would fead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

. an increase in the current or estimated future rental stream would have the effect of increasing the capital value

However, there are interrelationships between the unobservable inputs which are parually determined by market

conditions, which would impact on these changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

L2 Investment oronerties (Continued)
o

B Plovements i investoent giogsibies in the Coampany comprised:

Wabuation
AL Apnt 202t
Additions

Transfer from {ellow subsidiary undertakings of the TfL Group

Transfer (to)/from property, plant and equipment

Transfer from assets held for sale

Revaluaticn

At 31 March 2022

Additions

Transfer from fellow subsidiary undertakings of the TF. Group

Transfer from assets held for sale

Disposals

Rewvaluation

At 31 March 2023

Lapited comrmitineris -

(areup & Comguaty

Company

£m

[.178.4
6.2
1338
26.1
5.4
997
1,449.4
16. 4
137.1
5.2
(36.9)
{119.9]

1.451.0

At 31 March 2023, the Group and Company had capital commitments which are contracted for but not provided for in

the financial statements amounting to £8.4m [2021/22 £1.tm),

L5 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

At 1 April
AL 31 March

The Company's subsidiaries are.

SubrazBasies

Prire e e vty

TTL Blackhorse Road Properiies Limited * Holding company

TTI. Build 1o Rent Limited®
TTI Cards Courl Properties Limited *
TTL Office Properties Limited ~

TTL Kidbrocke Properties Limited *

Holding company
Holding company
Bormant company

Holding company

TTL Landmark Court Properties Limited * Holding company

TTl Northwood Properties Limited ©

Dormant company

TTL South Kensinglon Properties Limited * Property investment

Coempany
2023

£m

Company
20212

£m

Forcentape  Rogistered

badding ruinhet
100% 11121664
1 00% 1 2098343
100% 08951012
£00% 12526777
100% {0768(38
100% 11121741
100% 11607897
100% 1140398
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TTi. Southwark Properties Limited * Property investment 100% 08212651
TTL Wembley Park Properties Limited * Property investment 100% 12372143
T1L West London Properties Limited *# Property investment 100% 14743259

The financial statements of all the above companies are lodged at Companies House. All companies are limited by
shares and incorperated in the United Kingdom, The registered office of aill companies is 5 Endeavour Square. London
E20 1IN,

# Inceiporated during the year

* All outstanding Liabilities of these undertakings as at 31 March 2023 have been provided with a parent company
guarantee under 5.479C of the Companies Act 2006, Their individual financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 were therefore entitled to exemption fram audit under 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

F4 Interest in joint ventures

Carrying amaount of the Group's equity intersst in jaint ventures at 31 March

Cennected Living | ondon {BTR} Limited

Kidbrooke Partnership L1P
Biackhorse Road Properties LLP

Landinerk Court Partnership Limited
Wembley Park Properties {(WPPILLP

Group's share of gain/{loss) for the year at 31 March

Connected Living | ondon (BTR] Limited

Kiclbrooke Partnership LLP
Blackhorse Road Properties LLP

t.andmark Court Partnaership Limireg

Note

o

o

Group Group
2023 2022
£m £m
44.2 9.6
18.3 18.3
0.8 17
4.7 2.4
11.9 -
79.9 47.3
2023 2022
£m £m
0.7) {t.71
.1 {0.1)
7.2 7.3
2.3 2.4
a.7 7.9

Places tor London Limited {formerly TTL Properties Limited) Arimnee Report and Financigl Statements for the year ended 31 Marh 2023

G4



Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

4 Interest in joint ventures [continued)

a) Connected Living London {BTR] Limited

The Group via its subsidiary, TTL Build to Rent Limited, holds a 4% par cent interest in a joint arrangement called
Connected Living London {BTR] Limited {CLL), which was set up as a partnership together with Grainger Plc, to fund the
development of a major build to rent portfolic across London. The principle place of business of the joint operation is

the United Kingdom,

The Group has invested in non-interest bearing {oans inta the joint arrangement. The lean notes are non-interest beating
and have no fixed repayment date. They have therefore been treated in these financial statements as an investment in
the equity. As at 31 March 2023 the Group had invested £46.6m (2022 £11.6m) in loan notes.

As the Group has Joint control over the net assets and operations of its investment through equal representation on the
baoard and equat voting rights, it has equity accounted for its investmert as a joint venture in these consolidated firancial
statements, The financial year end of CLL is 30 Septerben.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's investment is set out below. For the purposes of applying
the equity method of accounting, unaudited management accounts made up to 3§ March have been employed.

Batance Sheet of Connected Living London {(BTR] Limited at the 100% level at 31 March

Group Group

2023 2022

£m Em

Cash 9.6 4.5
Other current assets bs

Current assets 10. ¢ 4.5

Investment property under construction 80.3 17.9

Nen-current assets 80.3 17.9

Creditors {C. 1} {2.9)

Current liabilitles .1 (2.9)

Non-current liabilities _

Total net assets 90.3 19.5
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

L4 Interest injoint ventures [continued)

oo oncibation of pet assets to wmonnbs g laded in the consolintated Grogs ef Coynty

Group Group

2023 2022

£m Em

Net agsets at [00% 90G.3 19.5

Percentage held by the Group 4% 4A9%

Carrying amount of the Group's equity interest in CLL 44.2 3.6
Ciscampe whiie g af coinprohanaien Baoom antt fopeadhtore of THE

Group Group

2023 2022

Ern Ern

Group share of loss from continung operations 0.7 (1.7}

Total Group share of comprehensive Income and expenditure for the year {0.7) {i.7)

The share of loss firom continuing operatians retlects administrative expenditure relating 10 the operations of the
company.

bi Kidbrooke Partnership LLP

the Group, through its subsidiary, TTE Kidbrooke Praperties Limited, holds a 49 per cent holding in the members’
interest of Kidbrooke Partnership LL P {KP LEP], a property development partnership. The prncipal place of busingss of
the joint operation is the United Kingdom. Through a cembination of its voting rights, Board representation and other
rights embeddad in the relevant management agreements, the Group is assessod as baving joint control. The investment
has therefare been accounted for a5 a joint venture using the cquity methaod.

KP LLP has 3 299 year lease over the land lying to the South East of Kidbrocke Park Road and is developing the site as a
mixed use development incorporating affordable housing. The financial year end of KP L1 P is 31 March.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's investment in KP LLP is set cut below. Amounts presented

are taken from unaudited management accounts made up to 28 February.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
4 Investment in joint ventures (continued)

Balance sheet of Kidbrooke Partnership LLP at the 100% level

Group Group

2023 2022

£m Em

Cash 2.0 8.9

Other short term assets 39.7 30

Current assets 41.7 33,9

Current liabilities (4.4 {2.5]

Total net assets o 37.3 N 37.4
Recanciliation of net assets to amounts included in the consaolidated Group accounts

Group Group

2023 2622

£m Em

Net assets at [00% 373 37.4

Percentage held by the Group A9% 49%

Carrying amount of the Group's equity interest in Kidbrooke Partnership LLP i 18.3 18.3
Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure of Kidbrooke Partnership LLP

Group Group

2023 2022

£m Em

Group share of loss from continuing operatians _ {0.1] i0.1)

[0.1) (1)

c) Blackhorse Road Properties LLP

The Group via its subsidiary TTL Blackhorse Road Properties Limited, holds a 49 per cent holding in the members’
interest of Blackhorse Road Properties LLP {BRP LLPL a property development partnership. The principal place of
business of the joint operation is the United Kingdom. Through a combination of its voting rights, Board representation
and other rights embedded in the relevant management agreements, the Group Is assessed as having joint control, The
investment has therefore heen acocoumted for as o joint venture using the equity methad.

The Group has invested in nen-interest bearing loans into the joint arrangement. The loan notes are non-interest bearing
and have no fixed repayment date. They have therefore been treated in these financial statements as an investment in
the equity. As at 31 March 2023 the Group had invested £2.6m (2022 E6.6m] in loan notes.

The Graup granted a 999 year lease aver land at Blackhorse Road ta BRP LLP for a cansideration af £15.9m. The
financial year end of BRP LLP is 30 dune.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's investment in BRP LLP 1s set out below. Amounts presented

are taken from unaudited management accounts made up to 28 February,

Places for London Limited iformerly TTL Properties Limited) Annual Repart and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 57



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
L4 Investiment in joint ventures {continued)

Balance sheet of BRP LLP at the 00% level

Group Group

2023 2022

Em Em

Cash 1.5 1.3

Other short Lerm assets 1.5 215

Current assets o B _49 o 42_35

Current Habilities - (2.4} 7 (EZ)

Total net assets L6 34.6
Reconcillation of net assets to amounts included in the consolidated Group accounts

Group Group

1023 2022

Em £im

Net assets at {00% 1.6 34.6

Percentage held by the Group 49% 49%

Carrying amount of the Group's equity interest in BRF LLP 0.8 17.0

Group share of compiehensive Income and expenditure of BRP LEP

Group Group

2023 2022

£rm £rn

Group share of profit lrom continuing operations 7.2 7.3

Total Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure for the year - 7.2 7.3

d) Landmark Court Partnership Limited

The Group vis its subsidiary, TTL Landmark Court Properties Limited, hatds a 49 poer cent intercst in @ joint arrangement
called Landmark Court Partnership Limited. The principal place of business of the joint operation is the United Kingdom.
Through a combination of its voting rights, Board representation and other rights embedded i the relevant management
agreements, the Group is assessed as having joint control. The investinent has therefore been accounted for as a joint

wenlure using the equity method.

During 2021/22, the Graup granted a 299 year lease over land at Liberty, Southwark site, at 15-33 Southwark Street to
LCP Limited for a consideration of £41 .8m. The financial year end of LCP | imited is 3 March,

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's investment in LCP Limited is 5t out helow. Amounts
wesenled are wWken from unaudited management accounts made up Lo 31 March.
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4 Investment in joint ventures {continued)

Balance sheet of LCP at the | 00% level

Group Group
20123 2022
£m £m
Cash - 1.3
Other current assets N 2{.__9 o _:19_5
Current assets - WZ:".'Q 47.8
Current liabilities {15.3) {38.2)
Total net assets h 2.6 9.6
Reconclliation of net assets to amounts included In the consolidated Group accounts
Group Group
2023 2022
£m Em
Net assets at 100% 9.6 5.6
Parcentage held by the Group 49% 43%
Group share of net assets 4.7 4.7
Adjustment for distribution of land receipt* - 12.3)
Carrying amount of the Group's equity Interest in LCP i 4.7 2.4
* Available profits in relation to the land receipt are distributed at 25% to TTL Landmark
Court Properties Limited
Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure of LCP
Group Group
2023 2022
£m £m
Group share of prefil from cantinuing operations adjusted {or distribution of land receipts 2.3 2.4
Total Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure for the year 2.3 2.4
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e} Wembley Park Properties [WPP) LLP

In 2022/23 the Group acquired a 49 per cent holding in the members’ interest of Wembley Park Properties LLP
(WPP LLP], a newly created property development partnership, for a cash consideration of £12.0m. The investrment
was purchasad through investment is non-interest bearing loan notes of newly incorporated subsidiary of the
Group, TTL Wembley Park Praperties |imited. The loan noies are non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment
date. The principte place of business of the join pperation is the United Kingdom. Through a combination af its
voting rights, Beard representation and other rights emnbedded in the relevant management agreements. the Group
is assessed as having joint control. The imwvestmaent has therefore been accounted for as a joint venture using the
equity method.

During 2022/23, the Group granted a 999 year tease aver land at Wembley Paik station car park to WPP L1 P for a
conideation of £16.3m. The financial year end of WPP LLP 15 30 June.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's investment in WPP LLP is set out below. Amounts

presented are taken lrom unaudited managernent accounts made up to 31 March.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

[4  Investment in joint ventures {continued)

Baslance sheet of WPP at the [00% level

Cash

Cther current assets
Current assets
Cusrent liabilities

Total net assets

Reconciliation of net assets to amounts included in the consolidated Group accounts

Net assets at 100%
Percentage held by the Group
Carrying amount of the Group's equity Interest in WPP LLP

Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure of WPP LLP

Group share of profit from continuing operations adjusted for distribution of land receipts
Group share of other camprehensive income

Total Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure for the year

Group Group
1023 2022
Em £m
7.9 -
3.3 -
312 -
l6.7) -
T 245 -
Group Group
2023 2022
Em £fm
24.5 -
49% -
11.9 -
Group Group
2023 2022
Ern £m
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|5 Interest in associated undertakings

7

Earts Court Partnership Limited

The Group holds a 37 per cent holding in the awnership and voling rights of Earls Court Partnership Limited [ECPL], a
property development company incorporated in England and Wales. Theough its voting rights and representation on the
Board of Dircctors of ECPL, the Gruup has significant influence but not control over the relevant activities of ECPL. The
Group's investment is therefore accounted for using the equity method in these consalidated accounts.

The Group has invested share capital and non-interest bearing loans into ECFL. The loan notes are non-interest bearing
and have no fixed repayment date. They have therefore been treated in these financial statements as an investment in
the equity of ECPL. As at 31 March 2023 the Group had invested £44,4m {2022 £44.4m) in share capitat and a further
£434.0m (2022 £423 Om) in loan notes.

The financial year end of ECPL is 31 December. For the purposes of applying the equity method of accounting, Lthe
unaudited management accounts of LCPL for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been used {2021/27: year ended 31
December 20244

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's Irvostment in CCPL is set out below:

Balance Sheet of Earls Court Partnership Limited at the 100% ievel

Group Greup

At 31 March (2021/12: 31 Decernber} 023 2012
Em Em

Cash 15,7 6.4
Other shost term assats 1.9 vy
Curent assets 17.6 8.4
Investment praperties 540.9 596.0
Property, plant and equipment 0.3 -
Non-current agsets o LS-;!E 596.0
Currert lablhties _7F-(97f;} o EEV_A77]
Nen carrent liabilities - {98.3} (74.7}
Total net assets T 4}:76 527.7

MNon-current liabilties represent third-party boriowings and deferred consideration on termination of an ebligation to
building o train stabling area.
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5. Investment in associated undertakings {continued)

Reconciliation of net assets to amounts included in the consolidated Group accounts

Net assets at [00% at 31 March {2021/22: 3| December 2021)
Percentage heold by the Group

Group share of net assets
investment in equity loan notes between 3| December and 31 March

Carrying amount of the Group's equity interest in Earls Court Partnership Limited at 34
March

Group share of comprehensive Income and expenditure of Earts Court Partnership Limited

Group share of {lossi/protit from continuing operations

Total Group share of comprehensive Income and expenditure for the yvear

Group Group
023 2027
£m Em
451.0 527.7
37% 37%
166.9 195.2
- 2.2
166.9 197.4
Group Group
2023 2022
£m Em
{41.5) 23.9
{41.5) 239

The share of {loss}/profit from continuing aperations primarily reflects fair value gains/filosses} recognised in respect of the

revaluation of the Earl's Court developrment site,

16 Equity loans to subsidiaries

tonecurpent

Equity loans to subsidiary companies

Balance at | April
New loans issued

Repayments

Less provisions for impairment:
Balance at 1 April

As at 31 March

Net book value at 31 March

Company Company
2023 2022

Em Em
288.2 2334
Company Company
2023 2022

Em £m
529.4 516.4
57.9 13.0

(3.11 -
584.2 529.4
(296.0) {296.0)
(296.0) {296.0}
288.2 233.4

Fquity loans to subsidiaries are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand with a two year notice period.
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L7 Assels classified as held for sale

A Asnots held for sate: Group

Group Group
2023 2022
hNote £rm Em
Balance cutstanding at start of year 51.5 54.8
Acquisition of assets heid for sale
investment properties 25.4 1.3
Revaluation {lossl/gain -
Investment properties 0.2 0.8
Transfers -
To invastment properties 12 [5.2) {(5.4)
Disposals
Investment prapertics (22.7) -
Balance outstanding at end of year 48.8 51.5
Do Azaety handd for gales Comprans
Company Company
2023 2022
Note Em £m
Balance outstanding at start of year 51.5 54.8
Acquisition of assets classified as held for sale
Investment properties 25.4 1.3
Revaluauion {losslgain
lnvestment properties 0.2} 0.8
Transfers
Investment properties 12 5.2 (5.4}
Bisposals
Investment properties 22.7 -
Balance outstanding at end of year 48.8 51.5

As at 31 March 2023, cerlain development sites and surplus land weie being actively marketed for sale. Disposals are
expected to complete within the next |2 manths, o, where agreements to sell bave alrealy been putin place, in line
with the timing of those arrangements.
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18 Tiade and other receivables

& Trade and other receivables in the Group comprised:

Group' Group
2023 2022
Current £m Em
Trade receivables 0.5 0.2
Other tax and social security 0.3 -
Prepayments 0.4 -
Centract assets: accruect income i.4 0.9
2.6 N

Mo current
0.5 -

Frepayments

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally paid within 28 days. kn 2023, £nil (2027 £nill was recognised

as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and contract assets {see note 25).

Conrtract assets balances iepresent the accrued income recognised but not yet invoiced to the custommer. Upon
completion of the terms of the contract and agreement with the customer/third party contribution, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables,

tr Frade and other receivables in the Company comprised:

Company Company
2023 2022
Current £m Em
Trade receivables 0.5 0.2
Amounts due from follow Group undertakings 2.2 0.2
Other tax and social security 0.3 -
Prepayments 0.4 -
Contract assets: accrued inceme I.5 0.9
4.9 1.3

Moy cuirent
Prepayments 0.5 -
0.5 -

Trade receivahles are non-interest bearing and are generally received within 28 days. In 2023, Enil {2022 £eil) was
recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and contract assets {see note 25).

Contract assets balances represent the accrued income recognised but not yet invoiced to the customer, Upon
completion of the terms of the contract and agreement with the customer/third party contribution, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade debtors
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19 Cash and cash equivalents

s ant Balan os in the Group Comgrised:

Group Group
2023 2022
£m Em
Cash at bank 80.6 9.6
80.6 o 9.6
B Cash halances w the Company ¢ oanpriad:
Company Comypany
2023 2072
£m £
Cash at bank 0.6 4.6
80.6 9.6
20 Trade and other payablas
At T grses O payebtes i the Diroop cormpnimeh
Group Group
023 2022
(TR S £m Em
Trade payables 1.8 0.4
Capital works 2.1 -
Amounts due to vltimate parent 12.8 16.2
Wages and salaries 2.5 -
Contract liabHities: other deferred income 12.5 113
Qhar waxation and social security 0.3 0.2
Coapual gronts receivad m advance .4
Accruats and other payables 7.5 38
' 40.9 319
Pdosre mugrent
Capital grants received in advance 0.3 -
0.3 -
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20 Trade and other payables (continued)

b fracde anct ather payabios incthe Company comprised:

Company Company

2023 2022

Cunent £m £m
Trade payables 1.8 0.4
Capital works 2.1 -
Amounts due to fellow Group undertakings 15.6 16.2
Wages and salaries 2.5 0.7
Contract liabitities: other deferred income 12.5 1.3
Other taxation and social security 0.3 0.2
Capital grants recoived in odvanee L4 -
Accruals and other payables 7.6 29
Y BT

Capital grants received in advance 0.3 -
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2 Provisions

b Group provisinms

Contractuai provisions

Severahce provisions

Due
Current
Non-current

At 31 March

D oanpanty pravistons

Contractual provisions

Severante provisions

Due
Currernt
ban-current

At 31 March

At} Apeil  Payments in Charge for Releases in At 3| March
2022 the year the year the year 2023
£m tm £m £m £
. 2.4 - 2.4
- 2.0 - 2.0
- . 4.4 - Taa
023 2022
£m £m
2.0 -
2.4 -
a4
At | April  Paymentsin Charge for Roleases in - At 31 March
2022 the year the year the year 2023
£m Em Em £m £m
- 2.4 - 2.4
- - 20 2.0
. 44 . aa
2033 2022
Em Em
2.0 -
2.4 -
— :__; e
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21 Provisions lcontinued)

o Matyre of provisions

Contractusl pravisicns

Ihe Group has provisions far expected compensation and contractual claims that arise in respect of disputes arising in
the ordinary course of business The provisions recorded as at 31 March are based on management’s best estimate at
the baiance sheet date of the likely loss to be incurred through settlement. Reflecting the inherent uncertainty with
many legal proceedings and claim settflements, the timing and amount of the cutflows could differ from the amount
provided. Based on current estimates management expects that these amounts, which are based on known facts and
take account of past experience for similar items, will be settled within the next one to five years. Where material the

provision held is discounted to ts present value.

Severance and other

Severance and other provisions include voluntary severance costs arising from rearganisations and other smaller claims.

Managernent expects these provisions to be settled within the next year.
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272 Contingencies

There are a number of uncertainlies surrounding projects, including claims in the course of negotiations, which may
affect the Graup's financial performance. Where claims are possible but not probable, or unguantifiable, such claims are
treated as cantingent liabilitles. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Financial statements, but are monltored to
ensure that, where a possible obligation has become probable or a transfer of economic benefits has become probable,

2 provision is made.

The impact of these contingent Labilities on the Group's financial performance, tiquidity or financial position is not

consideredd to be matenal.

The Company has also pravided a guarantee under section 479C of the Campanies Act 2006 in respect of all Habilities
outstanding at 31 March 2023 of the majority of its subsidiary undertakings, in order that those subsidiartes may teke
advantage of the exemption fram audie of their individual finangial staterments Those subsidiaries for which a guarantee

has been provided are as listed innote £3.
23 Financial commitments
a Uperatag beaves bhe Groog as tesnor

The Group leases out commercial. retail and oftice properny and land.

Al the Statement of Financial Postion date, the Group had contracted with customers for the following future minimum

lease payments:

Group Group

2023 20212

Investment properiies Em Em
Within one year 49.0 44.3
Batween one and two years 42.5 383
Between two and five years 98.5 838
Laler Lthan five years 766.5 53%.0
956.5 7054

70
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23 Financial commitments [continued)

by Operating leases - The Company as lessor
The Group teases out commercial, retail and otfice property and tand.

At tha Statament of Financial Mositiun date, (e Group had dontracted with customers for the fallowing future minimum
lease payments;

Company Company

2023 2022

Investrment properties Em £m
Within one year 49.0 443
Between one and two years 41.5 383
Between two and five years 98.5 83.8
{.ater than five years 766.5 539.0
956.5 705.4

24 Pensions

The Group offers retirement plans ta its emplayees.

Poblic Sector Sectmon of the TH. Pension Fund

The majority of the Group's staff are members of the Public Sector Section of the TfL Pension Fund, a defined benefit

scheme.

The TfL Pensiocn f'und is a final salary scheme established under trust. The Fund's Trustee is the TfL Trustee Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of TfL. Under the rules of the Fund. its '8 Frustee Directors are nominated in equal
numbers by TfL and on behatf of the Fund's membership.

Every three years. the TfL Pension Fund actuary makes valuations and recommends the level of contributions to he
made by the participating employers to ensure the tong-term solvency of the Fund. The latest available valuation of the
Fund was carried out as at 31 March 202! by the Actuary, a partner of consulting actuaries Willis Towers Watsan, using
the projected unit method. A revised Schedule of Contributions was agieed between the Trustee and the employers
fallowing the Formal funding valuation of the Public Secter Section.

Under the valuation report, the Fund held a surplus of £179m as at 31 March 2021 . Assets totalled £13.085m and the
defined benefit obligation totalled £12,906m. A revised Schedule of Contributions was agreed between the Trustee and
the employers following the formal funding valuation. This set out a future service contribution rate of 27.3 per cent for

e employers and five per cent for membaers.

The underlying assets and defined benefit obligation of the TfL Pension Fund cover a number of Group entitias and
cannot be readily split between each undertaking. Na contractual agreement ts in place to allocate the total net
obligation between the member entities. Thus, in accordance with 1AS 19, the Corparation, as the Scheme sponsor, has
recognised the total net defined benefit obligation in its own individual accounts.

A separate valuation of the TfL Pension Fund has been prepared, by actuaries at the XPS Pensions Group, for accounting
purposes on an |AS {9 basis a5 ar 31 March 2023. The assurnptions used by the actuaries are the best estimates chosen
from a range of possible actuarial assumptions, while the present value of the schemes’ defined benefil obligation is
derived from cash flow projections. Due to the timescale covered, neither the assumptions nor the cash flow
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nrojections may necessarily be borne out in practice. Management has assessed that T7L has an unconditional right to a
refund of surplus assets for accounting purposes under 1AS |9 assuming the gradual settlement of plan tabilities after
consideration of the Trust Deed and Rules, Therefare, any net surplus is recagnised in full.

The defined benefit cbligation for the TFL. Pension Furdd has been calculated using the mortality assumptions adopted
for the latest available funding valuation as at 31 March 202 1. Standard mortality tables were used, adjusted to reflect
the recent mortality experience of the Fund's pensioners at that date. An allowance was made for future mortality
improvements based an the CMI 2021 projections with a long-term improvernent rate of .25 per cent per annum. No
weighting has been given 1o 2020 or 2021 monality experience, given the exceptional impact of the coropavirus

pandemic on these years.,
The discounted scheme lisbiities have an average duration of |6 years.

It is not possibie te ientify the Company’s share of the underlying assets and defined benefit abligation of the Public
Sector Section of the TIL Pension Fund. This is because the plan exposes the participating entities to actuarial risks
associated with the current and former employees of other entities, with the result that there is no consistent and
reliable basis for allocating the oblipation, plan assets and cost to individual entities participating in the plan. Thus. in
accordance with IAS 19, the Company accounts {or contributions to the Public Sector Section as if they were
contributions to & defined contribution plan. The Company’s contributions to the Fund of £2.7m [2021/22 £3.2m) have

been charged to the Income Statement.
Acteanal assumptions at H Ma B

2023 2022

% %

Inflation - RPI 3.20 3.50

inflatian - CPI 2.80 3.0

Rate of increase in salaries 2.5 3.25

Rate of increase in pension payments and deferred pensions 3.15 3.43

Discount rate 4.75 2.60
o vaire of Sed oo asseds and Lobafors o0 39 0L b

2023 2022

f£m Em

Equities £2.669.50 10,883.6

Bonds £.329.20 35,1988

Cash, property and other assets 1.30 166.4

Total market value of assets | 4,000.0 14,2488

Actuarial value of Section liabilitics {12,370.00 (17.245.8}

Cloging Section net accots 16300 12,997.0)
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25 Funding and financial risk management

Intreduction
The Group's financial risk management aperations are ultimately carried out by the Board of Directors.
The Group's princpal financial instrunuesls comprise trade and other recevables, trade and other payables and cash and
cash equivalents. The Group finances operations from these financial instruments.
The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions.
Finandial Risks and Risk Management
The Group is exposed to a pumber of financial risks in the normal course of its business operations, the key ones being:
*  Credit risk
*«  Market risk
*  Liquidity risk

Each of these risks is managed in accordance with the Group's comprehensive risk management process. The TfL Board,
through its Finance Committee, approves and monitors the risk management processes, including documented treasury
policies, counterparty limits, and controlling and reporting structures.
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25 Funding and financial risk management [continued)
k

et rink
Credit risk is managed on a Group-wide basis. Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer ot
counterparty to a finandial instrument fails to meet contractual obligations. The following categories comprise the main

uedit usposures of the Lroup and Lompany.
Toastee angd Githag rec ehvabios

The Group earns the majonty of its revenue through property rentals. The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk

at the repotting date is the carrying value disclosed in note 6 and 18,

A significant portion of the financial assets arising in the Campany are with other Group companies. The maximum
exposure of the Company to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value disclosed in both notes (6 and 8.

The Group outscurces its rental collaction activity to a fellow subsidiary undertaking of the TfL Group, which remits net
cash recovered from third parties o the Group a rionth in arrears. Any intercompany receivable in respect of its rental
activity is therefore already net of the expected credit loss provision recognised by the coliection agent. As the Graup
acts as principal in these transactions the revenues are shown gross in these financial statements, with the cost of
expected credit loss provisions and bad debt expense being included within operating expenditure.

The Group assesses the credit worthiness of all new customers, performing credit checks and obtaining additionat

secourity when required.

At each reporting date. the Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses. This
approach uses a lifetime expected (oss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. In detormining the
expected loss rates, trade recevables and contract assets are considered together based on shared credit risk
characteristics. Historical loss rates over the short to medium term are applied to groupings of various customer
segments within trade receivables and cantract assets. [hese rates are adjusted to reflect expectations about future

credit lossas. There is a reburtable presumption that default bas occurred if assets are more than 90 days past due.

Despite the application of this altowance, these balances remain subject to enfarcement activity and rocoveries will ba
credited against the same line item as the expected credit loss within operating profit. On that basis, the loss allowance
as at 31 March 2023 was determined as follows for both trade recaivables and contract assets:
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25 Funding and financial risk management [continued)

Age of trade and other receivables Group

Overdue by
Overdue by Overdue by between &  Overdue by
less than 3 between 3 monthsand | more than |
Not overdue months  and 6 months year year Total
E£m £m Em £lm £m fm
At 3t March 2023
Expected credit loss rate 0.0% 0.0% n/a 0.0% nia 0.0%
Estimated total grass carrying
amount at default 2.0 o1 _ 0.1 . 2.2
Expected credit loss allowance . . _ . - -
Overdue by
Overdue by Overdue by between &  Owverdue by
less than 3 between 3 monthsand | more than |
MNot overdue months and 6 months year year Total
£m £m £m Eim Em £m
At 31 March 2022
Expected credit toss rate 0.0% 0.0% n/a nla nfa 0.0%
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default (0 O . _ ~ |1

Expected credit loss allowance _ - . . - R
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25 Funding and tinancial risk management [continued)

A of frade and othes debtoes, Tompany
Overdue by
Overdue by Overdue by betweaen 6 Overdue hy
less than 3 between3 months and | more than |
Not overdue months  and 6 months year year Total
£m Em £m £im Em Em
At 31 March 2023
Expected credit loss rate 0.0% 0.0% n/a 0.0% nfa 0.0%
Estimated total gross carrying
amaunt at default 4.2 0.1 B o - 4.4
Expected credit loss allowance ) : _ } _ -
Ovardue By
Qverdue by Overdue by between 6  Overdue by
less than 3 between 3 months and | mote than |
Not overdue months  and 6 months yoar year Total
Fm Fm Em Elem E£m Em
At 31 March 2022
Expected credit foss rate 0.0% nfa nfa n/a nia n/a
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default {2 01 . } i |3

Expected credit loss allowance

Trade receivables and contract assels are written off when therc is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there may be no reasonable cxpectation of recavery include, amongst othes things: falure of a debtor to engage in a

repayrent plan or advice from TfL's legal department.
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25 Funding and financial risk management [continued)

Toash and Cash Fagmvalents
All cash batances are Invested in accordance with Tfl's Treasury Management Strategy which was developed with regard
to the Treasury Management Code and the investment Guidance, and which requires a prudent approach to the

investinent of surplus fuds with priofity given to security and liquidity.

Cash and investments are considered to have low credit risk: the counterparties are highly rated by major rating agencies,
have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet obligations in the near term. While tow risk, these remain subject
to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 at each reporting date. The identified | Z month expected ioss allowance &s at

31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was immaterial.

Marvel risk

Market risk s the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreipn exchange rates. interest rates and inflation will affect
the Group's income, expenditure or the value of its haldings of financial instruments. The Group is not directly exposed

to material foreign exchange or interest rate risk.

{nflation tish

The Group bas a number of exposures to inflation including staff pay and construction costs. The Group has not entered
into any derivative instrument to manage its exposure to inflation risk. At present, the risk is partialty offset with index
linked revenues and index linked costs creating a natural hedge within the Group.

tiguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, Maintaining cash
reserves and access to funding sources are key to ensuring the Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, in

both normal and stressed conditions.

The Group is well capitalised, with £1.1850bn of share capital issued. and as at 31 March 2023 has net assets of
£1.799bn. it currently has no external debt. its Business Plan and latest Forecasts indicate an expectation that positive
net cashflows will be generated from operations over the period to March 2025,

The group has secured a revolving credit facility of £200m providing access to funds to manage forecast liquidity

requirements.

Due to liquidity management and risk mitigations in place. there is no significant risk that the Campany or Group will be

unable to meet planned financial commitrments.
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25 Funding and financial risk management lcontinned)
Contoactual tiatority of financ o Labilities
All of the Group and Company’s financial liabilities are due within {2 months.

fods walpes

In accordance with IFRS 7, the fain valuwes of the financial asselys and liabillties aze calcutated as the amount that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to wansfer a liability in an ordetly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date. The fair value of the Group and Company's tinancial instruments is not materiatly different to their

canying value.
Capital nmnagement

As al 3| March 2023, the capitad structure of the Group and Company consisted entirely of shareholder’'s equity. The

Group has no external borrowings and no externally imposed capital requirements,

The Group does not have a credit rating, but 1L, the Company's ultimate parent has a credit rating of AA- with Fitch, A+
with S&P Global and Baal with Moody's

26 Called up share capital

Company and (st 2023 2022

£m £m
Asat | April {,650.0 1.500.0
Issued during the year 200.0 1500
As at 31 March |1.850.0 1,650.0

During the year the Company issved 200 million fully paid £1 ordinary shares (2021/22 150 million fully paid £1 ordinary

shares). These were issued to acguire investment properties from TFL group. These transaclions have been settled through

intercompany balances.
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27 Equity loans

Graup and Company 2023 2022

Em Em
As at | Aprit - 516.4
Received during the year 0.6 -
Laans written off by parent “ (296.0)
Repayment during the year - {220 4)
As at 31 March 0.6 -

As at 31 March 2023, the Group and Company has received nan-interest bearing "equity” loans from their parent. TTL,
totaling £0.6m (2021/22: Enill. These loans are repayable on demand with a two year notice period. and as such their fair
value for accounting purposes could not be estimated. They are therefore recorded in these financial statements as a form

of equity funding received.

28  Related party transactions

During the year none of Group's directors, key management personnel or parties related to them, have undertaken any

material transactions with the Company or its subsidiaries (202 1/22 none).

The Campany s a wholly owned subsidiary of TTL, which is in turn a subsidiary of TfL. TfL 15 a statutory corporation
established by section 154 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, It is a functional body of the Greater Londan
Authority ("GLA") and reports to the Mayor of London. Til is classilied as a government entity in accordance wilh 1AS 24
Related party transactions ["IAS 247) and the Company and its subsidiaries are therefore also classified as government

entities in accardance with 1AS 24.

The GLA and its other functional bodies, and all other subsidiaries of TfL, are considered to be related parties of the
Company. Transactions between the Company and ils subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consotidation. Material transactions however between the Company and its subsidiaries and other :elated parties are

outlined betow:
The Group and Company traded with the following related parties that are classified as government entities under 1AS
24:

*  The Group purchased property assets from fellow subsidlaries of TfL {see notes 12 and | 7]

*  Receipt of funding from TTL in the form of share capital (note 26)

*  Receipt. forgiveness and repayments of equity loan funding from TTL [note 27}

= Payment of management fees to and from TTL and Tl for various services
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29 Ultimeate parent undertaking
The Company s a wholly owned subsidiary of TTL, a company controlled by TfL which is the ultimate parent
underiaking.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by TiL, a statutory corporation
The amallest group i which iy are consobidated 1s that headed by 111, a company incorporated in England and Wales.

Copies of the consolidated accounts for TTL, which consolidate this Group's rosults, are available on the TfL website
{tfl gov.ukl.

30 bvents after the reporting date

Management do not consider that there has been any post-Batance Sheet event that would require a further adjustment

being made to the carrying values at 31 March 2023 as reported in these financial statements.

On 20 June 2023, the directors agreed and passed o special resolution to change the riame of the company from TTL
Properties Limited {TTLP) to Places for London | imsted ["Places”}.
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